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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 55T

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Ms. LI Kei Ling (Chairman) FHRR LT (EE)

Mr. HUNG Yung Lai RERIIE LA

Mr. LI Tung Ming (resigned on 23 February 2018) FRAKXE (R N\FZA=Z+=HET)
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Mr. PAN Xue Tian (resigned on 1 July 2017) EERLE (R —tFtA—HHT)
Mr. CHOI Tat Ying Jacky BER L

Mr. LO Tung Sing Tony BRBEE

EDE, Ronald Hao Xi £ &£ (R=ZF—+F+ A —HH
FMITEERATABILIERNTES)

Mr. EDE, Ronald Hao Xi (re-designated from Non-executive Director to
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 July 2017)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. CHEN Shaojun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHQOI Tat Ying Jacky (Chairman)

Mr. PAN Xue Tian (resigned on 1 July 2017)

Mr. LO Tung Sing Tony

Mr. EDE, Ronald Hao Xi (appointed on 1 July 2017)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. PAN Xue Tian (Chairman) (resigned on 1 July 2017)
Mr. EDE, Ronald Hao Xi (Chairman) (appointed on 1 July 2017)

Ms. LI Kei Ling
Mr. CHQOI Tat Ying Jacky
Mr. LO Tung Sing Tony

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. LI Kei Ling (Chairman)

Mr. PAN Xue Tian (resigned on 1 July 2017)

Mr. CHOI Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. LO Tung Sing Tony

Mr. EDE, Ronald Hao Xi (appointed on 1 July 2017)
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, Hong Kong

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Suzhou Wuzhong Sub-Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Suzhou Nanmen Sub-Branch

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
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Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Group Structure

REBEREE

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Ltd.
Ll 4 =
RinFaFER)BR AT
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
PHRSEESTMXZMNARAT)
Listed on the Main Board of SEHK (Stock Code: 2348)
R ER LT (RO - 2348)

100% 100%

A A

Dawnrays International Co. Ltd.
RinER AR QA

(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)
(REBHEA A BTN BER DR

Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd.
RimEMREER(EMBERAR]

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )
(REBETMHZOERAED)

Dawnrays International Company Limited
R BIFRAR ) B R A A
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(REBEMAZBERAF])

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
4 A v y

Su Zhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical

Dawnrays (Nantong)

Suzhou Dawnrays Dawnrays Pharma Pharmaceutical

éGuangdong Dawnrays

Science and Phagmaite;tlcal (Hong Kong) Ltd. Science and Phg;“affé‘ﬁca'
Technology Co., Ltd. éﬂ‘l?%f%ﬁ%@ RIGHE(EE) Technology Co., Ltd. e
RN 53 B8 SE M CERAT BRAA BRI (7 ) B8 SRR HE A
N BB A s

*Dawnrays International Company Limited (53 BIBR I 19 AR 2 &) entered into an equity transfer agreement with an independent third party on 1 February
2018 to sell all of its shares held in Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. As at the date of this report,the share transfer procedure is still processing.

FRESROARANRBIA= AN~ F—\F—A— BT TRESR GRS A0 R ERARAARY - RARER - EHZRGS
BT BV RS -
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Dear SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“reporting period”).

GROUP RESULTS

The Group has recorded revenue of approximately RMB882,483,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB824,351,000), representing
an increase of 7.1% as compared to 2016. Profit attributable to owners of
the parent was approximately RMB292,978,000 (2016: RMB265,917,000),
representing an increase of 10.2% over 2016.

The increase in the revenue and the profit was primarily attributable to
complete resumption of production and sales of new products in the
reporting period due to sales of products taken back by the Group as a
result of cancellation of the master agency agreement for “Leiyide” ( & 5
5 ) for treating hepatitis B virus in 2016 was completed by the Group as
planned. In addition, losses on intermediate and bulk medicine businesses
reduced significantly compared with 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.12 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2017, amounting to the total sum
of approximately HK$95,183,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB76,826,000), to the shareholders whose names appeared in the
register of members as of Tuesday, 29 May 2018 subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming 2018 Annual General Meeting (the
“2018 AGM”). Taking into consideration the interim dividend of HK$0.03
per share, the total annual dividend distributed for the year is HK$0.15 per
share. The dividend payout ratio is approximately 32.7%.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

With gradual recovery of the global economy in 2017 and pick-up in
economic growth of China for the first time since 2011, there was a good
trend in domestic consumption, innovation, investment, etc. Under this
background, future economic development will be more steady and
vigorous. The pharmaceutical industry of China sustained growth as a
whole. Under the guidance of various medical and pharmaceutical policies
and measures continuously published by the government, pharmaceutical
firms were still under various business pressures and needed to allocate
more resources in response to industry operation change. Based on
particularity of medical service and continuous increase in per capita
medical consumption, rigid social demands remained strong, and the
China’s medical and health industry maintained favorable development
momentum.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

In the reporting period, the revenue and profit of the Group increased
compared with 2016, and the sales volume of specific medicines remained
stable. For “Leiyide” ( &5 515 ) (Entecavir Dispersible Tablets), after direct
marketing by the Group, a better-than-expected achievement was made,
with the sale target, regional coverage, etc. exceeding the planned ones,
which will be conducive to future market expansion. The Group’s contract
for supply of Entecavir Tablets in Hong Kong market through
GlaxoSmithKline Limited, a partner of the Group, was performed smoothly
as a whole, and all parties concerned were satisfied with the Group’s
product quality and supply service.

During the period, the antibiotics end market of China tended to be stable
with limited growth. The difficulty in business operation was not significantly
mitigated, as some homogeneous varieties competed fiercely. In the first
half of 2017, the Group’s workshops for production of cephalosporin bulk
medicines suspended production due to adjustment and reconstruction.
Relevant reconstruction was basically completed, which provided a
stronger guarantee of the production quality and capacity for years to
come. The Group recorded losses on cephalosporin intermediate and bulk
medicine businesses, but the amount of such losses decreased, compared
with last year. The Group expects that with successful implementation of
business plans and in the absence of any major unforeseeable adversity,
cephalosporin intermediate and bulk medicine businesses of the Group
would be improved continuously and return to profitability in the
foreseeable future.

As disclosed in the announcement titled “DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION
— RELOCATION COMPENSATION”, which was published on the Stock
Exchange’s website on 20 December 2017, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group has signed a relocation compensation
agreement with the local government, due to certain requirements of
Suzhou Municipal People’s Government on urban planning of Wuzhong
Economic Development Zone, and the amount of relocation compensation
agreed by both parties was approximately RMB351,200,000. Refer to the
aforesaid announcement for major details of relevant agreement. The
Group will take this relocation project as an opportunity to speed up
equipment rebuilding of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical and promote its
technical upgrade, thus boosting the equipment level and manufacturing
capacity of the Group, stimulating product and technology transformation
and upgrade, improve the manufacturing process level of cephalosporin
antibiotic products, product quality, production efficiency and capacity,
and enhance the corporate image and comprehensive competitiveness.

In May 2017, the Center for Drug Evaluation, CFDA accepted the
application of clinical trial for Class 1 new drug registration of AK102, a
monoclonal antibody agent, from AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“AD
Pharmaceuticals”), which was jointly invested by Dawnrays Biotechnology
Capital (Asia) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Akeso Biopharma Inc. ( H 1L 54 P8 ee 5 TR /\ 5] ). As at the date of
this report, the application is still being processed. In addition, active efforts
are being made for AK109, another drug of AD Pharmaceuticals under
development.
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In order to enhance the management efficiency of the Group, it is
necessary to adjust the corporate structure. On 1 February 2018,
Dawnrays International Company Limited (“Dawnrays International”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered into the “Equity Transfer
Agreement” (“the Agreement”) with an independent third party, in order to
transfer all equity interests held by Dawnrays International in Guangdong
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Dawnrays”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group (including assets, business qualification
certificates and licenses of Guangdong Dawnrays), for a consideration of
RMB2,900,000. Directors of the Company believed that such transfer did
not have any material influence on businesses of the Group.

Over the past few years, the government has frequently published different
policies and implemented various standardization measures in terms of
research, development, production, circulation, terminal and other aspects
of the medical and pharmaceutical industry, leading the future development
of the China’s medical and pharmaceutical industry. In general, the
industry will accelerate its upgrade to a higher level, so in the whole
process, an enterprise must maintain efficient operation in terms of market,
capital, technology, management, etc., and must effectively respond to all
changes and requirements of the macro business environment. The Group
will, in strict compliance with all national policies, implement all business
plans, sufficiently using internal financial resources, in order to maintain a
moderate endogenous growth especially in terms of sales and the profit
level of specific medicines. It will also continue to seek opportunities for
external expansion, so as to accelerate expansion of the size of the Group.
Meanwhile, affected by social factors, the China’s pharmaceutical market
has significant room to grow in the future and eagerly demands for quality
drugs. Therefore, in terms of new products and technical innovation, the
Group will still take market orientation as an important policy and focus on
development of system specific medicines, so as to launch high-quality
innovative and first generic products with an obvious curative effect and a
high market value in due course, and by doing so, satisfy social demands.
Meanwhile, the Group will maintain the sustainable development
momentum.

The Group’s management will continue to practice its time-honored
pragmatic style of operation, aim at the long-term shareholder interest,
make prudent decisions and focus on our business. Meanwhile, the
management will continue to recruit outstanding talents, optimize the
management system and stabilise the management team in a bid to create
reasonable returns for the shareholders of the Company.

Chairman’s Statement
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APPRECIATION =3
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Meanwhile, | would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation EEge  NAARORIHIHARRRE EFRAEE
for the great support to me in various tasks from the Company’s BEBRY BTEABNBINBEA—FESEI
shareholders and directors and the Group’s business partners, VELGETARANKR NS -

management personnel and all staff in the previous year.

By Order of the Board EREEEW

Li Kei Ling ZH®K

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018 BE - \=ZH-+=H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the review period, under the pressure of intense market competition,
sales of the Group’s anti-hypertensive drug in “An” (%) series medicines
and anti-allergic drug “Xikewei” (78 7] &) (Cetirizine Hydrochloride Tablets)
kept almost even as compared to 2016. “Leiyide” (B 5 15) (Entecavir
Dispersible Tablets) achieved remarkable increase in sales. Sales of
cephalosporin finished medicines was relatively stable, of which
“Xiankemei” (5 7] &) (Cefmetazole Sodium for Injection) achieved rapid
growth once launched on the market. Sales of cephalosporin bulk
medicines and intermediates tended to be better as well.

During the period, the Group’s marketing management team closely
checked the effectiveness of various business plans, adjusted the Group’s
marketing ideas and sales strategies properly in line with the rapid market
changes, strengthened allocation of resources, and optimized supply and
sales system, in an effort to maintain the market shares. The Group’s
marketing management team will continue deepening the market, make
efforts to further improve the organization control over the market at
various levels, and endeavor to ensure the reasonable increase in sales
amount of that series of medicines in 2018, thereby making contributions
to the Group’s profitability.

ANTI-HYPERTENSIVE PRODUCTS

Hypertension is the most common chronic non-communicable disease.
According to medical statistics, the prevalence rate of hypertension among
Chinese residents aged 18 and above is over 25%, so anti-hypertensive
drugs have a broad market prospect. The Group paid special attention to
market development in this field, and participated in the national “Chinese
Hypertension Intervention Efficacy Study” (CHIEF). The Group cooperated
with more than 150 medical institutions to provide anti-hypertensive drugs
for over 10,000 patients, so the Group enjoyed favorable brand reputation
among doctors and hypertension patients. At present, the Group is also
contacting with the administrative department for hypertension of the
World Health Organization (WHO), in an attempt to achieve academic
cooperation again, and provide academic support for the promotion of
“An” (*4) series products in future.

SRR e
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED T

During the period, considering the tendency that the product market of
common anti-hypertensive drugs extended downwards from the first
terminal, the Group’s marketing management carried out precise design
and control of the key marketing impact points such as sales channels and
sales price of major product “Anneizhen” (% A &) (Amlodipine Besylate
Tablets), strengthened allocation of resources, and attached importance to
reinforcing the promotion activities of the second and third market terminals,
thereby ensuring the continual sales of such products on the market and
guaranteeing the stability of market shares. Based on the Group’s
integration of the survey data of market research institutions, the sales of
“Anneizhen” (% KW E) was placed the leading position among similar
products on the second and third market terminals in many cities
and provinces, and occupied considerable market shares. Moreover,
another anti-hypertensive drug “Anneixi” (% A E ) (Losartan Potassium and
Hydrochlorothiazide Tablets) of the Group also recorded high sales growth.
Ever since 2016, the Group’s marketing management team made a
decision on transformation of the sales model of “Anneixi” (% N ), which
made great progress in 2 years, and was placed the leading position
among domestic brands in terms of sales. Along with the further refined
management in future, it is anticipated that “Anneixi” (Z A=) will become
the Group’s second star product for anti-hypertension. In the future, the
Group’s marketing management team will focus more attention on brand
planning, channel planning, price planning and academic promotion of the
“An” (“4#) series products, strengthen the access design of products to
different markets by closely following up national policies related to chronic
disease management, and further expand the new market.

ANTIVIRAL PRODUCTS

According to market information, Entecavir is currently “basic” medicine for
clinical treatment of hepatitis B, accounting for more than half of the
nucleoside drugs. In 2016, the market scale of the single variety of
Entecavir in China exceeded RMB5 billion. Since the Master Agency
Agreement for 0.5mg “Leiyide” (& $15) was terminated in July 2016, the
Group has directly planned and organized the marketing of “Leiyide” (&
8). Apart from reinforcing the original marketing channels, the Group also
attached great importance to expanding other regional markets. For the
tenders in 2016-2017 (“this round”), the marketing management fully
researched the tender policies in various places, and made the “stable
price” decision of focusing on regional superior market in terms of tender
strategy, thereby guaranteeing the price advantages of the product, and
ensuring the probability of developing the regional superior market bigger
and stronger. After this round of tenders, the tender strategy for “Leiyide”
(& 5 15) was demonstrated, proving the correct positioning of the
Group’s strategy. In further, the Group can reinforce academic promotion
and bring into full play the market potential of “Leiyide” (& %15 ) by virtue
of the “unique cyclodextrin inclusion technology” and the “international
quality” strengths. During the period, under the full efforts of the Group’s
sales teams, all the market promotion work was successfully implemented,
better sales results than expected were obtained, remarkable growth in
sales amount as compared to 2016 was recorded, and the long-term
stable market foundation was laid for “Leiyide” (& %1% ).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANTI-ALLERGIC PRODUCTS

Cetirizine Hydrochloride is a kind of antihistamine drug without central
nervous sedation. It is the first choice for community clinics to treat
allergies, as well as one of the national low price drug catalog products.
However, as affected by national tenders, its price has dropped
continuously, and the overall sales amount and volume both showed
downward tendency. During the period, the Group’s marketing
management deeply research the product of “Xikewe” (F§ 7] &), the
competitive products, business customers, etc., and made corresponding
adjustment in marketing policy, thereby ensuring its stable market shares.
As the sales price of such products is too low, many competitive
enterprises have reduced their concern of similar products. However, the
Group will combine the sales advantages and spare no effort to promote
consistency evaluation of “Xikewei” (78 7] & ) and take the lead in acquiring
the quality advantages of consistency evaluation, so as to further reinforce
and enhance the sales volume and market share of “Xikewei” (78 7] #).
Another product of the Group — “Xikexin” (F8  8]  %7) (Levocetirizine
Dihydrochloride Tablets) also recorded certain sales scale, which
performed effect of filling up the vacancy in terms of sales price and
business channels, and made up the market impacts arising from
adjustment of the marketing policy for “Xikewei” (78 0] & ).

FINISHED CEPHALOSPORIN PRODUCT

The finished cephalosporin product has long been occupying a significant
share of China’s antibiotics market due to its good efficacy and safety, and
will always have a broad market space because of factors such as
environmental pollution (e.g., haze) and enormous social population. In
recent years, the restriction of antibiotics, tenders and other factors have
inhibited the R&D, production and sales of the Group’s products. In view
of this, the Group’s management optimized the product mix by referring to
the actual market circumstances and by combining the corporate
strengths, and made certain achievements in satisfying the productivity,
profitability and sales volume. In particular, the Group has made
breakthroughs in sales terminals. For instance, “Xiankemei” (4t 7] 3¢ ) took
the lead in passing the consistency evaluation of medical institutions in
some provinces and regions, which not only blazed a new beginning for
the Group’s cephalosporin products to return to core hospitals, but also
reshaped the professional image of the Group’s antibiotics business. As
the Group expects, as the consistency evaluation of medical institutions on
“Xiankemei” (%t 7] 2E) advances, the Group’s cephalosporin antibiotics
business will develop with breakthroughs.

INTERMEDIATES AND BULK MEDICINES

In terms of the Group’s business of intermediates and bulk medicines for
cephalosporin antibiotics during the review period, after the renovation of
bulk medicine workshops, the production conditions were favorable for
controlling the production cost and maintaining the product quality, but the
Group still recorded losses from the business of intermediates and bulk
medicines, and only the amount of losses shrank sharply as compared to
2016.
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In consideration of the environment (restriction of antibiotics, etc.) and
fierce competition at China’s cephalosporin market, the Group determined
to adjust the strategy after evaluating various factors and market tendency
before the year, and focused attention on production and sales of
cephalosporin varieties with higher added values, apart from existing
varieties. Therefore, the management expects to continuously improve the
business performance of such segment upon successful implementation
of various plans, and has the confidence in restoring its profitability
contributions in 2018.

PRODUCT R&D

Apart from the description in the following section of “NEW PRODUCTS
AND PATENT LICENSING”, the Group’s ongoing projects cover the
therapeutic areas of circulatory system, digestive system, endocrine
system, antiviral drugs, etc. The Group will continue investing more
resources in production technology and product R&D and innovation, and
seek after various scientific research cooperation opportunities so as to
strengthen our product mix and profitability foundation.

OTHER MATTERS

During the period, the Group continued optimizing production, product
quality, human resources, etc., and endeavored to enhance the risk control
capability and improve the operating level of various systems, in an attempt
to maintain the Group’s sustainable development in the fierce business
competition environment.

PRODUCTION AND SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s production volume
and sales volume of intermediates and bulk medicines respectively
remained the same and increased by 4.4% as compared to that in 2016.
Due to stable increase in product quality of the Group’s bulk medicines
and bulk medicines sales market pickup in the second half of the year,
greater increase was achieved. The production volume of cephalosporin
powder for injection increased by 11.7% while the sales volume decreased
by 7.5% as compared to last year, where the decrease in sales volume of
powder for injection was attributable to specie structure adjustment. The
production volume of solid-dosage-forms increased by 6.8% as compared
to last year, but the sales volume remained the same with that in last year.
As for the international business, the Group kept expanding its overseas
market, making the overseas sales accounted for 14.0% of total sales
volume of the Group, representing a y-o-y growth of 1.8 percentage
points.

NEW PRODUCTS AND PATENT LICENSING

(1)  In 2017, a total of 7 species’ declarations for registration were filed
with the Food and Drug Administration of Jiangsu Province (including
7 supplementary applications for approval or record and 3
applications for re-registration); a total of 12 approval documents
were obtained (including 9 supplementary application documents for
record, and 3 re-registration approval documents).

(2) In 2017, 2 species have been accepted by Center for Drug

Evaluation of China Food and Drug Administration (CDE) for
evaluation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(8) In 2017, the filing of bio-equiavailability (BE) for the consistency
evaluation as to a total of 3 species has been completed.

(4) In2017, a total of 4 invention patents has been granted:

(i) “A Kind of Rosuvastatin Calcium Tablet and its Preparation
Processes” were granted the invention patent certificate on 28
July 2017.

(i) “A Kind of Levamlodipine Besylate Tablet and its Preparation
Processes” were granted the invention patent certificate on 24
October 2017.

@iy  “A Kind of Cefoperazone Sodium Hydrolysate and its
Preparation Methods and Purposes” were granted the
invention patent certificate on 27 October 2017.

(iv)  “A kind of Entecavir Dispersible Tablet and its Preparation
Processes” were granted the invention patent certificate on 7

November 2017.

HONORS AWARDED IN 2017

TIME OF HONORS
AWARDS
June 2017 Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R&D

Center) was awarded one of the foreign-funded R&D
centers approved in the first batch to enjoy tax rebate
policy as to purchase of domestic equipment and tax
policy as to import.

November 2017  Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. passed
the qualification certification for “Jiangsu Provincial
High-tech Enterprise” .

November 2017  Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was
awarded as “Top 100 Enterprises of China’ s Chemical
Pharmaceutical Industry in Integrated Corporate
Strength in 2017”. The Group s product “Amlodipine
Besylate Tablet” (“Anneizhen”, % N B) was awarded
as “Excellent Product Brand in China’ s Pharmaceutical
Industry in Anti-Hypertensive Class in 2017 .

November 2017 “Levamlodipine Besylate Tablet (“Anmeiping”, % 3
)" was recognized as “High-tech Product of Jiangsu
Province”.

February 2018 Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was
awarded by Wuzhong District Government as
“Landmark Technology (Patent) Enterprise” and
“Advanced Enterprise in Energy Saving and Emission
Reduction” of Wuzhong District in 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB882,483,000, which was increased by
RMB58,132,000 or 7.1% compared with last year. Of which the turnover
of intermediates and bulk medicines was RMB156,882,000 which was
decreased by RMB6,704,000 or 4.1% compared with last year. The
turnover of finished drugs was RMB725,601,000 which was increased by
RMB64,836,000 or 9.8% compared with last year. The reasons for
increase in turnover mainly attributed to recovery of growth in sales volume
upon the Group’s revocation of agency rights for “ Leiyide” (Entecavir
Dispersible Tablets).

Sales amount of finished drugs, comprising system specific medicines,
powder for injection and tablets of cephalosporin and other oral solid-
dosage-form of antibiotics, reached approximately RMB725,601,000.
Taking into account of the total turnover, sales amount of finished drugs
was approximately 82.2% which was increased by 2.0 percentage points
compared with last year. Sales amount of system specific medicines
accounted for 90.9% of sales of finished drugs.

Gross profit was approximately RMB561,549,000, which was increased
by RMB50,070,000 compared with last year, representing an increase of
9.8%. Gross profit margin increased by approximately 1.6 percentage
points to 63.6% from 62.0% as in last year. It was mainly due to the
influence of increased sales proportion of system specific medicines.
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TABLE OF TURNOVER ANALYSIS EEBEON — HERSD
PRODUCT TURNOVER (RMB’000) SALES BREAKDOWN (%)
ER BEE (ARETR) LB (%)
Percentage
points
EL
2017 2016 Changes 2017 2016 Changes
Z8-tE -—T-xE gz Bt —T-AE 215
Intermediates and Bulk Medicines RS I R 156,882 163,586 -6,704 17.8 19.8 -2.0
Finished Drugs g2 725,601 660,765 64,836 82.2 80.2 2.0
Overall sape 882,483 824,351 58,132 100.0 100.0 0.0
EXPENSES &H

During the year, the total expenses incurred were approximately
RMB219,536,000, equivalent to 24.9% of turnover (2016: 24.6%). The
total expenses increased by approximately RMB16,931,000 compared
with last year which was RMB202,605,000. The selling and distribution
expenses decreased by RMB10,809,000 compared with last year due to
adjustment in sales model. Administrative expenses increased by
RMB17,866,000 compared with last year mainly due to the influence by
adjustment in employee incentive mechanism. Other expenses increased
by RMB10,018,000 compared with last year, mainly due to the increase in
consistency evaluation expenses and exchange loss.
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SEGMENT PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the segment profit of finished
drugs segment was approximately RMB488,211,000, which was
increased by approximately RMB68,306,000 when compared with that in
2016 which was RMB419,905,000. The segment results of intermediates
and bulk medicines segment recorded losses of approximately
RMB5,355,000. The loss was reduced by RMB9,134,000 compared with
the loss of RMB14,489,000 in 2016. As the Group had strict control in the
production cost of cephalosporin bulk medicines, the overall production
cost was reduced and the loss situation of the Group’s bulk medicines
business had larger improvement compared with last year.

INTERESTS AND RIGHTS IN ASSOCIATE

During the year, Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd. (Dawnrays
Biotechnology) — subsidiary of the Group invested Phase 1 registered
capital of RMB50,330,000 as agreed in a joint venture contract (as agreed
in such contract, Dawnrays Biotechnology proposed to acquire 35%
shares of AD Pharmaceuticals at RMB150,000,000 in total). According to
this contract, Dawnrays Biotechnology shall invest the remaining capital by
installments as per the completion of the clinical trial of the project by AD
Pharmaceuticals. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the R&D and
administrative expenses occurred by AD Pharmaceuticals have totaled
approximately RMB19,090,000. As a result, the Group shared, in
proportion to the investment percentage, an investment loss approximately
of RMB6,682,000.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit attributable to owners of the
parent amounted to approximately RMB292,978,000, representing an
increase of RMB27,061,000 or 10.2% compared with RMB265,917,000 in
last year. Such increase was primarily attributable to recovery of sales of
Leiyide, one of the system specific medicines, and decrease in loss of bulk
medicines and intermediates.

ANALYSIS ON THE RETURN ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, net assets attributable to owners of the parent
were approximately RMB1,806,158,000. The return on net assets, which
is defined as the profit attributable to owners of the parent divided by net
assets attributable to owners of the parent was 16.2% (2016: 16.2%). The
current ratio and quick ratio was 4.77 and 4.39 respectively. Turnover days
for trade receivables were approximately 60 days. The turnover days for
trade receivables including bills receivables were 110 days. Turnover days
for inventory were approximately 138 days.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and bank balance
approximately RMB611,077,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB663,296,000). In addition, in Other Receivables, an amount of
RMB449,000,000 was used by the Group to purchase principal-
preservation type of wealth management products from several banks in
Mainland China in order to increase interest income. The principal and
interest of these principal-preservation type of wealth management
products can be received on maturity date. During the year, the net cash
inflows from operating activities was approximately RMB390,741,000
(2016: RMB320,258,000). Net cash outflows used in investing activities
was approximately RMB452,396,000 (2016: RMB105,739,000). Net cash
outflows used in financing activities was approximately RMB137,862,000
(2016: RMB117,271,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of
approximately RMB918,341,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB724,397,000), of which, bank facilities of HK$22,000,000 were
secured by corporate guarantee of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, the Group has no bank loans. Its debt ratio (defined as sum of
interest-bearing bank loans over total assets) was 0% (as at 31 December
2016: 0.5%).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB184,853,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB110,684,000), mainly due to the influence of changes in sales model
of pharmaceutical enterprises resulted from the implementation of “two-
invoice system” throughout pharmaceutical industry in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the inventory balance of
approximately RMB121,133,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB124,746,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s contracted but not provided for
plant and machinery capital commitments amounted to approximately
RMB4,500,000 (as at 31 December 2016: RMB3,060,000), which mainly
derived from the sewage treatment works and workshop GMP renovation
in Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.

Due to the urban planning adjustment of Wuzhong Economic Development
District by Suzhou Municipal People’s Government, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical entered into the Relocation Compensation Agreement with
the government where it operates on 20 December 2017. Both parties
agreed relocation compensation amount was approximately
RMB351,200,000. According to related accounting standards, such
compensation shall be regarded as policy-based relocation compensation,
included into “deferred income” in accounting, and recognized as income
in case of disposal of assets, paying the relocation fees, and subsequent
depreciation of fixed assets.
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In 2016, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical already applied to increase the
registered share capital by USD86,500,000 and would be injected by
installments before 1 January 2045. The Group will invest capital
expenditure to acquire new lands and build new plants.

The Group has sufficient financial and internal resources to pay the capital
commitments, capital expenditure for relocation plans, investment projects
and increased registered share capital described above.

Save as aforesaid disclosure, the Group had no significant external
investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year.

Given consecutive loss of Guangdong Dawnrays in recent years, it is
expected that the business of Guangdong Dawnrays will be further
affected by the implementation of two-invoice system. After the reporting
period, for matching the Group’s management and future development,
Dawnrays International entered into an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party on 1 February 2018. According to this agreement,
Dawnrays International would sell all of its shares held in Guangdong
Dawnrays at RMB2,900,000. The registered capital of Guangdong
Dawnrays was RMB3,000,000. As at date of this report, the formalities for
such equity transfer are still under process.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND TREASURY POLICIES

In 2016, the Group kept a part of foreign currency payments for goods as
foreign currency fixed deposits due to the depreciation trend of Renminbi
and thus recorded approximately RMB6,966,000 exchange gain. As the
appreciation trend of Renminbi in 2017, although the Group timely hedged
against foreign exchange rate risk with foreign exchange forward contracts
for part of foreign currency fixed deposits, the Group still recorded
approximately RMB6,289,000 exchange loss for the year ended 31
December 2017. The Group’s substantial business activities, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, so the risk derived from the foreign
exchange to the Group is not high, except for the Group pays dividends in
Hong Kong Dollars. Therefore, the foreign exchange risks are primarily with
respect to Hong Kong Dollars. The treasury policy of the Group is to
manage any risk of foreign exchange or interest rate (if any) only if it will
potentially impose a significant impact on the Group. The Group continues
to observe the foreign exchange and interest rate market, and may hedge
against foreign currency risk with foreign exchange forward contracts and
interest rate risk with interest rate swap contracts if necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED T

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed approximately 862
employees and the total remuneration was approximately
RMB120,615,000 (2016: RMB99,191,000). The increase was due to
changes in sales model, recruiting some new employees, and adjustment
in employee incentive mechanism. The Group regards human resources
as the most valuable assets and truly understands the importance of
attracting and retaining high-performance employees. The remuneration
policy is generally based on the references of market salary index and
individual qualifications. The Group provides its employees with other fringe
benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes, share option
scheme and medical coverage. The Group also offers some of its
employees stationed in the PRC with dormitory accommodation.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had not pledged any assets to banks
to secure credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries (as at 31 December
2016: RMB31,815,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED
SOURCE OF FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital commitments,
increased registered share capital, capital for relocation plans, and external
investment under the section “Liquidity and Financial Resources”, the
Group does not have any plan for material investments or acquisition of
capital assets.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) believes that corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Good corporate governance can safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. Therefore, the
Board has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of
corporate governance is maintained.

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended
31 December 2017, except for the following deviation:

1. Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code — Attendance of Non-
executive directors at general meeting

Other than one Independent Non-executive Director who was not in
position to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 25 May 2017 (the “2017 AGM”) due to an overseas commitment,
all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) attended the 2017 AGM.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the
accounting period covered by the 2017 annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The management has been delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

No corporate governance committee has been established and so the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct to employees and directors such as inside information
disclosure regulations and assuring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.
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The Board held 25 board meetings including 6 regular meetings and 19
ad-hoc meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017. The regular
board meetings were to consider, among other things, reviewing and
approving the interim and annual results of the Group, overall group
strategy, annual budgets, approval of major capital transactions and other
significant operational and financial matters. The ad-hoc meetings were
convened when circumstance required such as reviewing and approving
capital expenses for production facilities, granting share option to
employee, appointment of management, re-designation of director, share
repurchase and investment in research and development project etc.

Details of the attendance of Directors at board meetings, annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and other three board committees’
meetings (the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee) during the year 2017 are set out in the following
table:

EEeRHE_T—tHF+_A=1T—HLFER
ERT-+tAREFEEH BEAATHESS
ERMTNARABRESESR THERRZR(H
TEE)EHIRMUEAEET N2 FEE BRD
EEREE  FERE HEEREARRZREMERE
ERVBEE BRERRERAERERHWE
BREAEEERBNERMS  RTBERERER
ERE TR  HEEE DBRERLMEBEBLIES
MmAR °

RITZ—tF ZEFREFTHE  FARABRRE
FRrE(BRBEFAE) A =—HEFZEEE
#(BEZZES RAZBERFMEZBS)NLRE
HBEIIBNTE

No. of meetings attended/held

SHLERY/ BITRE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration

Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors ST e RERBFAE ENZESR RRZES® FHZEES
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) FERTLT(EE) 25/25 11 4/4 2/2
Mr. Hung Yung Lai FRAbE A 25/25 11
Mr. Li Tung Ming TRERE 20/25 i
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man PERELE 14/25 11
Independlent Non-executive BUFHITEE

Directors

Mr. Pan Xue Tian' EERLE 4/25 i 2/5 3/4 2/2
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BEERALE 15/25 0A 5/5 4/4 2/2
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony BRBEE 14/25 11 5/5 4/4 2/2
Mr. Ede, Roanld Hao Xi? EDE, Ronald Hao Xi 5t &2 15/25 11 3/5 1/4 0/2
1 Mr. Pan Xue Tian resigned on 1 July 2017. ! FEERAEER T —tFLHA—BREHT-
2 Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi was re-designated as Independent Non-executive 2 EDE, Ronald Hao Xi st AR — T —+F+ A —HBHK

Director on 1 July 2017. No remuneration committee meetings were held
since his re-designation.

At least 14 days notice of regular board meeting is given to all Directors.
The agenda and board papers are sent to the Directors at least 3 days
before the meetings of the Board and board committees so that the
Directors have the time to review the documents. Directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arises. Minutes of
meetings of the Board and board committees are recorded in sufficient
details that matters considered and decisions reached. The draft and final
versions of the minutes will be sent to Directors within a reasonable time
after the meetings. Minutes of meetings of the Board and board
committees are kept by the company secretary of the Company and open
for inspection on reasonable notice by any Director.
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All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and
service of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Upon
reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors can seek
independent professional advice to assist them to discharge their duties, at
the Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board had determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a board meeting with
the presence of disinterested Independent Non-executive Directors or a
meeting of a board committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a
resolution passed in a board meeting.

BOARD COMPQOSITION

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to educational background, ethnicity, working experience,
professional skills, knowledge and length of service. All board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates would bring to the Board.

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of whom three are
Executive Directors, one is Non-executive Director and three are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition meets the
requirement of the Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-third in
number of its members comprising Independent Non-executive Directors.
The three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
accounting and business management respectively. With their experience
gained from senior positions held in other organisations, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out in
pages 32 to 34 to the 2017 annual report, which demonstrates the skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications of the Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, one of
the Executive Directors, are directors and ultimate shareholders of several
private companies incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. The
balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are willing to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code A.6.5 on
Directors’ training. All Directors had participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out below:

Briefings and updates on
the listing rules,

ESEFEEIINRERE

EETHEEEXERIEENIRBEREEN
HABARRE  NEREEBECEARBEZEEN LY
EBEZBERATAERTEELZER -

BEFEAHETERTAFEACLKERESREI -
HEZZT—+tF+-_A=1T—HLEFE 2EEF
BESEFEFERRR  YERARRHRMEME
X Z2ElRcsx

REBE_Z—tHF+_A=+—"HILFE RE=F
BRI EA RSN :

Attending or participating
in seminars/conferences

business, operations, relevant to

and corporate the management

governance matters or business

ERLTHRD - £ BER HERSMEEERFXK

Directors 2= CEERBEEZERREN EEZEE g8
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHRZT 4
Mr. Hung Yung Lai AERMIE ST A& 4
Mr. Li Tung Ming THASLA 4

Mr. Leung Hong Man RERTE v v
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi %t 4 v
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BOERSEA 4
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony BRI & 4

As Mr. Pan Xue Tian resigned on 1 July 2017, he did not submit his
individual training record to the Company.

APPOINTMENTS AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new Directors
first by reviewing the profiles of the candidates and making
recommendations to the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first general meeting
immediately followed their appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years and
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”).

22 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SEs84%5 (#55% ) HRR A 7

BEREER_T—LFLA—HEE BLFR
L PN =R =S RN

EERMERESR

HMEFEZRAEARRRZEEEE  BHKREAZ
BEAAEESFLESR FAREFTSLTEM
R ERIMEMAZEETGEZCHETARTANE
BEREETER CRAE LEREF -

FHRTEEFNEEREFHAME  XARELRAR
FEBERAMN(ESERRA D RRRBFRE
LEWESRAYBEBE



According to the Company’s Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at the annual general meeting. All retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his first appointment to have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the
business and governance policies of the Company. The Directors
endeavour to give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs and
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board
meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and policies and
make sound and independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They are also members of various board committees and scrutinize the
overall performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The management has the obligation to supply the Board with monthly
updates and adequate information to enable it to make informed decisions
on matters placed before it. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has separate and
independent access to the Group’s management to make further enquires
if necessary. Where queries are raised by Directors, management will
respond as promptly and fully as possible.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision of the CG Code A.2.1, the roles of the chairman (the
“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The Board
has appointed Ms. Li Kei Ling as the Chairman. She has executive
responsibilities and provides leadership to the Board such as ensuring all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and
received complete and reliable information in a timely manner so that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities. Mr. Chen
Shaojun was appointed by the Board as the CEO of the Company and has
been delegated with the authority and responsibility for implementing the
Board’s policies and the Group’s daily business operations and
management. The CEO will periodically present the updated market
situation, long term strategies and objectives of the Group, quarterly results
variances analysis between the actual performances and the budget
targets to the Board at the Board meeting. This helps the Board to monitor
the Group’s business operations and to adjust the targets when required.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management provides explanation and information to the Board so as
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the approval by the Board.

The Directors and CEO acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements and announcements to shareholders. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as the information required to be
disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.

The responsibilities of the auditors to the shareholders are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50 and 56.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness
at least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles
in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit
functions.
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The CEO and senior management of the Group is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. Appropriate policies and controls have been set
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance
are appropriately identified and managed. However the systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition and to manage
operational risks. Of which including:

(1)  establishing written policies and work flow for major operations and
production cycles to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and industry standards;

(2) clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
business and operational unit, having in place appropriate
segregation of duties and setting proper authorization levels to
ensure adequate checks and balances; and

(8)  rules and guidelines are set to control treasury activities, financial and
management reporting, human resources functions and computer
systems’ operations.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the following elements:

(i) identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business;

(i)  develop necessary measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such
risks; and

(i) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the core
operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, business and
operational units assess and identify their potential risks which may impact
on their ability to achieve their business objectives and/or those of the
Group. The head of each unit has to complete relevant risk and control
self-assessment questionnaires and confirm to the CEO that appropriate
internal control policies and procedures have been established and
properly complied with. CEO conducts review of the effectiveness of risk
management annually and presents report to the Audit Committee after
review.
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In addition, the Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems through a programme of
internal audit. The internal audit department is set up by the Company to
review the major operational and financial control of the Group in
compliance with the established processes and standards on a continuing
basis and aims to cover all major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis. The internal audit department reports directly to the Chairman of the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee examines the
internal audit department’s review and opinions about operational
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and reports to the
Board.

During 2017, based on the internal audit report and the risk management
report presented by internal audit department and CEO respectively, the
Audit Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas of concern
that would have a material impact on the Group’s financial position or
results of operations and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be generally effective and adequate including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy to ensure that inside information is
disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations. Access to inside information is at all
times confined to relevant senior management executed on “as needed”
basis, until proper disclosure or dissemination of inside information is made
in accordance with applicable laws and regulation. Relevant personnel and
other professional parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality
of the inside information until it is publicly disclosed.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the
management by the Board, with division heads responsible for individual
department’s daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of interim and annual reports and
announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

26 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEs8.%5 (125% ) HRR A 7

BAN EFFBBREEZREF SR ks R
EREREBRBRAR - RARRILABEEEL
UNHBEEEENAEB 2 T ELERMBESES
BREIENREMRE  REENBREERER
SECMBETELE ANBIHERAE=TEE
FREZZEQER MEXZESUEHNALE
S AR BAMEZE ZRREERRN R ERR
BEROYMEESEHER-

RZFT—t5F RENIPESBREZ D FIERA
NEEA RS RARERERES  ERZEQRES
ENEXREAHEANEENM BN KL L XKE
ERERTEMHZMEINEER  TRRARE
BEANBEZAGERMEATALARY - BFEE
S5 AEET AV BERBE ST EERHNER -
BTERLER URERHNB THIIRELE
o

WEEEBER

ARBCHIEBREK - AHERARHESARBERED
FOER R RSER [ A R M o EEREHE - AR
REESREEBABLRBERFTRTEERAR
HE  BEERRBSRBERENFESR T URKE
R WIREAHEECBTIREMERALA
BARBEREEECARKE -

EEERNINER

EXEQERARBEZAREERIKRERE 5
TERERAPINATEEE-

ESERMZAEEEBRT IR XFHERS
BHRARFERSE MBS ARESSR AMATHRZ -
HITEFEMRMZEBRIE RIER  #ITZER
MEEGIERAREREFANETERETRE
HRANEAR P o



BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee. The committees’ terms of references
defined their functions and responsibilities have been posted on the
Company’s website.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2017, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s
chairman, and the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Choi
Tat Ying Jacky, Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony and Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi as the
committee’s members. The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference
are summarized as follows:

(1)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skill,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(2) to nominate for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and where they arise;

(8) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(4)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;
and

(5) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

During the year 2017, the Nomination Committee had four meetings to
review the independence of independent non-executive directors and the
renewal of Directors’ letter of appointment and to recommend the re-
designation of Independent Non-executive Director.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2017, the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) had Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi, an
Independent Non-executive Director, as the committee’s chairman, Ms. Li
Kei Ling, and two Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Choi Tat Ying
Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony, as the committee’s members. The
Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as follows:

(i) to recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure of
all Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i)  to determine with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment;

(iv)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v)  to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved in
deciding her/his own remuneration.

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. In
order to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance persons, the
Company has adopted share option scheme to reward those participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

The Board considers that the executive directors of the Company, CEO and
the financial controller are the key management personnel of the Group. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate emoluments payable to
directors, CEO and financial controller were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000

Details of the amount of Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial statements and the
details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee had two meetings in 2017 to determine the
bonus and salary adjustment of senior management.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) which was
established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who among
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the accounting
profession, commercial, medical and pharmaceutical sectors.

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr. Choi
Tat Ying Jacky, Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony and Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi were
the committee’s members. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are
summarized as follows:

(i) to consider and recommend to the board the independence,
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors;

(i)  to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and to deal with any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(i) to review financial information; and

(iv)  to oversee financial reporting system, risks management and internal
control system.

During the year 2017, the Audit Committee had five meetings, two of
which were held with external auditors without executive directors present.
The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2017 is summarized below:

(1) reviewed the external auditors’ independence, the terms of
engagement and approved the remuneration of the external auditors;

(2)  reviewed the annual audit plan of the external auditors and discussed
with them about the nature and scope of the audit;

(8) reviewed the Group’s interim financial information and annual
financial statements, before submission to the Board, discussed the
financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during the
audits, including but not limited to the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices, and on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements;

(4)  reviewed internal audit report and annual audit plan of the internal
audit department and the effectiveness of internal audit function;

(5)  reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and their effectiveness.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before
recommending them to the Board for approval.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst and Young has been reappointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the AGM on 25 May 2017 until the conclusion of the next AGM.
During the year 2017, the remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s
external auditors in respect of services provided is as follows:

Fees for audit services amounted to RMB1,458,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pang Kit Ling, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group. During the year, the company secretary of the
Company confirmed that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a director, please refer to
the procedures available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

30 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BEES84%5 (#25% ) HRR A 7

RER A &

LK EBARART ZE—+FRA=-TH
ARFAFAE LEBER /AR ZINSZ BN E
ERERFAFREGRIL -R_Z—1F  grref#t
RBENHENARR ZINEZHE 2T

ZH RS 2 BRI AR 1,458,000 7T °
NAEMWE

ARRATNBLRE LT AREERNESR &
Py AR FIA TR BRI B S IR 1558 i
SR

HEEREXM

RBE_ZT—tF+T_A=+—HIEFE KRAA
ZHEBERAM A EIZA R B -

B R AR

RERAABZARAMERMAUESIHRZRE
A —fr s A ENE2ERKAMFETDRAR A
REAR(MERRABBRRREGRAEN) +DZ2—
MR RMEMREAEEBAARTAEETGTHM
ERHEEEL  BXEZSEHRBRFEIAREG - A
REAMERTPEANEMNER  BZARGERRE
ERBREMEARNET - WE2R-_T—HR &
FeARBAMZARE  BIBRRUM) AIRE AR
ABRZAE  BREAZEEGERECHEHAMABE
WEFRESEER  ARARREERR -

MEMBRRDERARR 2 A REAMEIZ AR I &
FIARRAERRAEG LIREFEMIRER - BE
RERBEZBRRARELBEAERFERARA A
FRERARE

AR RRERREAZER
BiER

LN EONSEb

MR AT BERF BN A R R 2 BB EEE M (M A
BB EE 5833851t/ £,30123001-02F)
MEZGRIEHLKRETR -



COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the publication of
annual and interim reports. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, corporate governance practice, interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars issued by the Company enables the
Company’s shareholders to have timely and updated information of the
Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends the
AGM and arranges the chairman of the committees or in the absence of
the chairman of such committees, another member of the committees to
be available to answer questions at the AGM. The Chairman proposes
separate resolutions for each issue to be considered, including the election
of Directors, and put each proposed resolution to the vote by way of a poll.
Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the day of AGM.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EERGENEEEEBRE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 69, is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. Ms. Li is one of the founders of the Group. She founded the
Group in December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002.
She was also the chief executive officer of the Company from 1 March 2015
to 17 April 2016. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of Dawnrays International Co.
Ltd., Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (5 5 B B B% 19 & R 2 &), Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries
of the Company. She is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Li has over twenty years of
experience in corporate management, strategic planning, business
operations and finance, in particular for pharmaceutical enterprises in the
PRC. She is responsible for supervising the strategic management decisions
to ensure good corporate governance practices and business policies are
established, and executing the overall developmental strategies of the

Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 73, is an Executive Director of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in
December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002. Mr.
Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays International Co. Ltd., Dawnrays
Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd., Dawnrays International Co. Ltd. (335
B2 A% 15 B BR A A)), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a degree
from H/EE44E0E (Shanghai Conservatory of Music). He has over twenty
years of experience in corporate management and corporate development,
and has participated in founding and managing of pharmaceutical and
high-tech enterprises. Mr. Hung is an executive director and the chairman
of Sing Lee Software (Group) Ltd., a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. CHEN, Shaojun, aged 40, is an Executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. He joined the sales and marketing
department of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, in August 2002 as area manager and was
responsible for developing area market of new specific medicines of the
Group and managing its sales business. Mr. Chen has long specialized in
sales promotion, network building, brand upgrading, planning and
managing of business development in China pharmaceutical market. He
has accumulated almost twenty years of experience in pharmaceutical
sales and marketing and corporate development and management. Mr.
Chen was appointed as executive vice president of the Company in
December 2014 and became the chief executive officer of the Company
on 18 April 2016 to take charge of daily business operations of the Group.
Mr. Chen was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 8
January 2018. Mr. Chen also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. and Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
which are all subsidiaries of the Company. He is also the general manager
of Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 43, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board in
November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business career in knitting
machinery since 1993. He has over 10 years experience in sales and
management and also over 10 years experience in finance and property
investments. In recent years, Mr. Leung has strived to exploit business in
hi-tech agriculture and arts and cultural industries. Mr. Leung currently is
the shareholder and the director of Toyo International Investment Ltd.,
which has been one of the substantial shareholders (as required to be
disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) of the
Company since September 2005.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI, Tat Ying Jacky, aged 49, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Choi joined the Group in September 2004.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
respectively. Mr. Choi has extensive experience in financial and treasury
management, corporate finance, investment and audit. He earned his
Bachelor degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a first class honours in 1990. Mr. Choi was an executive
director of China Polymetallic Mining Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ) from 15 May 2017
to 6 June 2017.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EENGREEEBE

Mr. LO, Tung Sing Tony, aged 49, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in October 2010. He is
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company respectively. Mr. Lo has extensive
experience in financial management and business development in Hong
Kong and multinational companies. He obtained his Bachelor degree in
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Master of Science in Financial Management from The University of London.
Mr. Lo is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a full member of CPA Australia. He currently holds
the position of the Head of Corporate Financial Control at The Hong Kong
Jockey Club.

Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi, aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Ede joined the group in June 2015 and was
appointed as a Non-executive Director. He was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from 1 July 2017. Mr. Ede has
extensive experience in financial and business management in multinational
companies. He obtained his Bachelor degree in Business Administration
from The University of Hawaii and a Master of Business Administration
degree from The University of Washington. He is also a fellow member of
the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. During the period of
September 2006 to 3 March 2016, Mr. Ede was an independent director,
a member of each of the audit committee and the transactions committee
of Mindray Medical International Ltd. (“Mindray”) (a company delisted from
the New York Stock Exchange on 4 March 2016 due to privatization) and
was re-appointed as Mindray’s independent director and chairman of the
audit committee in January 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Yi Jun, aged 54, is the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. Wu
is responsible for the Group’s financial management including financial
planning, capital budgeting, execution of costing, budget planning and
monitoring. Mr. Wu obtained a Bachelor degree of Accountancy from
Nanjing Audit Institute (renamed as Nanjing Audit University in 2015). He
attained economist and senior accountant qualification in the PRC. Mr. Wu
has over thirty years’ experience in auditing, budgeting, financial
management, corporate banking, economic management and PRC’s
taxation regulations. Mr. Wu joined the Group in December 2002.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report and the
audited financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
audited financial statements on pages 57 to 157.

An interim dividend of HK$0.03 per ordinary share was paid on 28
September 2017. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.12 per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on
the register of members on 29 May 2018. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
presented in “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 5 to 7 and pages 9 to 13 respectively. The “Financial
Review” on pages 14 to 18 also includes an analysis of the Group’s
financial key performance indicators during the year. Future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages
5 to 7 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 12.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, on 1 February 2018, the
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Dawnrays International
Co. Ltd. entered into a share transfer agreement with an independent third
party to sell all its equity in the directly owned subsidiary, Guangdong
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., at RMB2.9 million. At the date of this
report, the transfer of shares procedure is still processing.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Details about the Group’s financial risk management objectives and
policies are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements. The following
risks and uncertainties may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to pharmaceutical sector and some
are from external sources.

M

2

3

DRUG APPROVAL PROCESS IN RELATION TO PRODUCTS
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The actual timing of the market launch of products under
development could vary significantly from our estimates due to a
number of factors including delays or failures in our pre-clinical
studies or clinical trials, the lengthy approval process and the
uncertainties in the outcome of regulatory approval process. If any of
the necessary approvals in relation to products under development
is delayed or not obtained, this could adversely affect the timing of
the market launch of the products. The Group is committed to
investing in research and development of new drugs in order to
ensure a rich product pipeline.

TENDER AND PRICE CONTROL

In each province where we market our products, the Group have to
participate in a government-led tender process every year or every
few years. In the event that the Group fails to win the tender in a
provincial tender process, the sale of the Group’s products to public
hospitals in such province will be prohibited and the Group will lose
market share in such province. In addition, certain new methods
have been recently adopted in the provincial tender process, which
may exert further downward pressure against the price of
pharmaceutical products and the Group’s market share, revenue
and profitability may be adversely affected. The Group has a team of
staff monitoring and handling the drug tenders with the objective of
winning the tenders for the Group’s products at a desirable price
level.

HEALTHCARE REFORM IN CHINA

The healthcare system in the PRC is undergoing a crucial reform
period, where laws, regulations and policies in effect governing the
medical, healthcare and pharmaceutical industry are constantly
evolving. New policies implementation may have material effects to
the Group. It may also incur significant costs, divert the resources
and attention of the management and thus leading to more
uncertainties and risks in respect of the Group’s business and
operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Board is well aware of the importance of environmental protection on
the Group’s sustainability and stable development. The Group strives to
improve product quality while achieving the best balance between cost
control and environmental protection, devotes to be a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise with low energy and resources
consumption and low level of discharge on wastages. The Group has
established an environmental management system to promote clean
production, to reduce pollution and to reduce the risk of environmental
accidents. The Group also evaluates environmental and social risks of its
suppliers on a regular basis to ensure the safety of its supply chains.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
announced on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Company’s website within three months after the publication of the annual
report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the directors and management are aware, for the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group has complied in all material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

M

2

3

4

EMPLOYEES

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The staff and remuneration policy are
presented in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 18.

SUPPLIERS

The Group has established a supplier management system to
handpick suppliers through a screening and evaluation process
based on quality and price. Furthermore, the Group also carries out
field audit on its suppliers when necessary, with a view to make
endeavor to ensure its suppliers are equipped to provide guarantees
on quality, as well as safety and other environmental issues that
require managerial skills. Such audit cover a number of areas,
including productivity, technical standards, quality assurance, supply
capability, as well as safety and environmental management
credentials.

DISTRIBUTORS

The Group sells some of products to customers through third-party
distributors. The Group works closely with distributors to ensure that
the Group shares the view for upholding brand value and customer
services, specifically focusing on attracting and retaining customers
in order to drive sales growth. The Group also requires distributors to
comply with the Group’s policies and promotional activities
standards. The Group also monitors the financial condition and
repayment history of distributors.

CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
constantly endeavours to deliver quality products and services to its
customers. The Group also directs dedicated efforts to deal with
complaints about relevant products and has established relevant
processes to handle complaints. In addition the Group has assigned
staff to investigate customers’ complaint cases and provide timely
feedbacks in order to safeguard customers’ benefits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 31 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. Other
fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes, share
option scheme and medical cover are also provided.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals
during the year are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 158. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
RMB57,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land use rights
of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in notes 13 and
14 to the financial statements, respectively.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

The Group did not have interest-bearing bank loans as at 31 December
2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased 9,111,000 shares of the
Company’s listed securities on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HK$45,072,000 before expenses. All the repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company. The Directors
believe that the repurchases reflect the Company’s confidence in its long
term business prospects and would ultimately benefit the Company and
create value for the shareholders of the Company. The monthly breakdown
of shares repurchased during the year was as follows:
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017 the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB242,658,000, of which RMB76,826,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company of approximately
RMB26,160,000 as at 31 December 2017 is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 21.48% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 6.38%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 26.40% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 7.17%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai

Mr. Li Tung Ming (resigned on 23 February 2018)
Mr. Chen Shaojun (appointed on 8 January 2018)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Leung Hong Man

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Xue Tian (resigned on 1 July 2017)

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony

Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi (re-designated from Non-executive Director
to Independent Non-executive Director on 1 July 2017)

In accordance with the article 87 of the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles”), Mr. Hung Yung Lai will retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGMH).

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky will retire by rotation and being eligible for re-
election. However, Mr. Choi will not offer himself for re-election at the AGM
due to his decision to devote more time to his personal endeavours. Mr.
Choi Tat Ying Jacky confirmed that he has no disagreement with the
Board and there is no matter that needs to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders and the Stock Exchange in relation to his retirement from
the Board. Upon his retirement, the Board will identify suitable candidate(s)
to fill the vacancy of an independent non-executive Director, a member of
nomination committee and remuneration committee and the chairman of
the audit committee or adjusting the composition of the committees as
soon as practicable in order to comply with the Listing Rules. The
Company will make further announcement as and when appropriate.
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As Mr. Chen Shaojun was appointed as an Executive Director by the
Board since 8 January 2018 pursuant to article 86(3) of the Articles, he will
retire from office at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible offer himself
for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky, Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony and Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao
Xiand as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 August 2017, the
Company has been notified that Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky was charged on
10 August 2017 as a co-defendant for conspiracy to defraud between May
2012 and May 2013 when Mr. Choi was employed by the Hong Kong
Mercantile Exchange Limited, and that the Company has been notified that
Mr. Choi has been released on bail.

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

The Board considers the executive directors of the Company, CEO and
the financial controller are the key management personnel of the Group.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the financial
controller are set out on pages 32 to 34 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Kei Ling entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Ms. Li’s service contract
was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1 July 2005
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years. Her
appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice. Ms. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee
and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$1,162,800 per year.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Mr. Hung’s service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1
July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years.
His appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice. Mr. Hung is currently entitled to
director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$742,800
per year.

Mr. Chen Shaojun entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 8 January 2018. His appointment
is subject to termination by either party giving not less than two months’
written notice. Mr. Chen is currently entitled to director’s fee and other
remuneration from the Group totally HK$1,818,000 and a discretionary
bonus payable at the absolute discretion of the Board from time to time.
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Mr. Leung Hong Man entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years which commenced on 1 November 2005
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Leung is
currently entitled to a basic annual remuneration of HK$180,000. Mr.
Leung’s appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than one month’s written notice. Save for the above director’s fee, Mr.
Leung is not entitled to any other remuneration.

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years which commenced on 30 September
2004 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Lo
Tung Sing Tony entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 1 October 2010 and will
continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Ede, Ronald
Hao Xi entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
two years commenced on 15 June 2015 and renewed on 15 June 2017
for a term of two years. As Mr. Ede was re-designated as independent
non-executive director, he entered into a new letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of two years commenced on 1 July 2017. Each of
Mr. Choi’s, Mr. Lo’s and Mr. Ede’s appointment is respectively subject to
termination by either party giving not less than one month’s written notice.
Each of Mr. Choi, Mr. Lo and Mr. Ede is currently entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$216,000. Save for the above directors’ fees, the three
Independent Non-executive Directors are not entitled to any other
remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group. There is no contract
of significance between the Group, its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or were in existence during the year.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

In the opinion of the Directors, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders of the Company and any of their respective close associates
has engaged in any businesses that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during the year under review which are
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution and/
or discharge of his duties and/or the exercise of his powers and/or
otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties, powers or offices,
to the extent as permitted by laws.

The Company has acquired insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities which provides certain indemnities against liabilities incurred in
respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors and

officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 June 2003 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”) was expired on 20 June 2013. All other
respects of the provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme remained in
full force and holders of all options granted under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme prior to such expiry were entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme until
expiry of the said options. As a result, on 24 May 2013, the shareholders
of the Company approved at the annual general meeting a new share
option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”), and took effect
immediately on 21 June 2013, which was after the expiry of the 2003
Share Option Scheme. The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme and the 2003 Share Option Scheme are similar and are
collectively referred to as the “Scheme”. The detailed disclosures relating
to the Scheme including the purposes and the eligible participants of the
Scheme and valuation of options are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements. The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 79,478,400 shares which representing approximately 10.02%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this annual
report.
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Movements of Company’s share options under the Scheme during the RER - ZetElFmA QG EREZE T -
year were as follows:
Closing
price of the
Company’s
Number of share options shares at
BRENA immediate
At31 Date of grant Exercise date before
December of  Exercise period price of the grant (c)
At1 Granted  Exercised 2017 share options  of share options share BERLE
January 2017 duting the during Lapsed during W=Z—t% (a) (dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy) options (b)  BERI-X
Name or category S5E5RY RoE-t& year  theyear theyear(d) TR REBERERE ERETESY ERE A0ARG
of participant £3 -A-B ERERY  EREAE EREARG  =t-B @(R/A/E) (B/ B/ &) fEEL) KHER(
HK$ HK$
Al L
Chief Executive Officer (6)  #3(e)
Mr. Chen Shaojun (e) BAEEL ) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 08/01/15  08/01/16-07/01/21 515 4.97
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18/03/15  18/08/16-17/03/21 521 515
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 16/04/15  16/04/16-15/04/21 7.34 717
8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
Other employees EhEE
In aggregate 3t 1,324,000 - (1,270,000 (54,000) - 25008/11 25/03/12-24/03/17 313 314
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 17/09114  17/09/15-16/09/20 6.44 6.07
2,900,000 - - - 2,900,000 08/01/15  08/01/16-07/01/21 515 497
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 16/04/15  16/04/16-15/04/21 7.34 717
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 23111/15  28/11/16-22/11/21 6.38 6.37
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1/0516  11/06/17-10/05/22 6.34 6.29
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 08/09/16  08/09/17-07/09/22 5,66 5,56
- 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 29117 29111/18-28/11/23 425 419
13,324,000 6,000,000 (1,270,000) (54,000) 18,000,000
21,324,000 6,000,000 (1,270,000) (54,0000 26,000,000

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate date before the
grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading
day immediately prior to the date of grant of the options.

Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to
resignation of employees.

Mr. Chen Shaojun was appointed as chief executive officer of the Company
on 18 April 2016 and then was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 8 January 2018. Mr. Chen Shaojun was granted totally
8,000,000 share options in 2015. The total number of share options granted
to Mr. Chen representing approximately 1.009% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of this report, which exceeds the rule “the maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible person in the
Scheme is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company issue at any time” of
the Scheme. This is due to the Company repurchased shares and cancelled
during the year, resulted in the issued share capital of the Company
decreased.
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The price of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately before the
exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the Stock
Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised over all of the exercise of options within the
disclosure line. The weighted average closing price of Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised by
employees was HK$4.61. No options granted under 2003 Share Option
Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme were cancelled during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BENRGOEE SORERMEHE
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
Directly Through capital (%)
beneficially Share Option controlled HEARRAT
Name Notes owned granted corporation Total EEITRAN
=t Bt aE EEEREE EERNBERE BBREZEHNARES ECE2 A7t (%)
Directors
=
Ms. Li Kei Ling (a) 49,612,000 - 294,072,000 343,684,000 43.33
FHRZT
Mr. Hung Yung Lai (a) 312,000 - 294,072,000 294,384,000 37.11
RERMIZ A
Mr. Li Tung Ming (b) 112,000 - 40,000,000 40,112,000 5.06
FRASLAE
Mr. Leung Hong Man (©) - - 50,000,000 50,000,000 6.30
Chief Executive Officer
BmE
Mr. Chen Shaojun (d) 2,452,000 8,000,000 - 10,452,000 1.32
PRAAE 4
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporation:

PARBSEB D KRR PR

Percentage of
the associated

Number of corporation’s
Name of Ordinary Capacity and issued
associated Relationship with shares nature of share capital
Name of Director corporation the Company BELE interest MR LEE 1T
EEE8B HEEEEE B R T HEIE REOEE SHORERME BRABNE D
Ms. Li Kei Ling Fortune United the Company’s 2 Through a controlled 50
THR T Group Limited holding company corporation
PA/NSIEEE /NS EiE—EEH A
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Fortune United the Company’s 2 Through a controlled 50
RERUAE ST A Group Limited holding company corporation
RAREZER A A BiE—fEEE A
Notes: M 5E
(@) 294,072,000 shares of the Company are held by Fortune United Group @ 294,072,000 RARFRMNE—RRABER RS
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Keysmart +F fift 5K 32 89 2 &) Fortune United Group Limited FT 3%
Enterprises Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick A ° Fortune United Group Limited #9R% 78 A 2= H 35 4
International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, are each 12 & A 1) Keysmart Enterprises Limited 5 £ A& B4
beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Fortune United Group 18 56 4 2 & A B9 Hunwick International Limited & B
Limited. BEmEA 50% Eam o
(o) 40,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Time Lead Investments (o) 40,000,000 R ARAFIRMNE—RNEBER RS T
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire i EX S22 B Time Lead Investments Limited 54 ©
issued share capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned Time Lead Investments Limited &) 2 &F & 317 3% A& &
by Mr. Li Tung Ming. FRAFEERMEER ©
() 50,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Toyo International Investment € 50,000,000 & AR AR B —RIEEB MK B R
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong Man and AR ERRARES - REBKKREAR
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing are each beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital RANEBEBITRABRRR L ERRIBREES
of Toyo International Investment Limited. Bl 50% 5 o
(d) 2,452,000 shares of the Company are directly beneficially owned by Mr. d 2,452,000 R A AFRIRNEMRBELEEEE = HE
Chen Shaojun and 8,000,000 underlying shares are the share options A + 8,000,000 & 48 B8 A% 10 B0 4 &5 A IR B AN A R BB AR
granted to him under the share option scheme of the Company. Mr. Chen is BRTEIR TROERE  REEWEAERBETER
deemed to be interested in the shares which will be issued to him upon his HEEERBER BT 2 IRMDER - AMER R RIRARR
exercise of options, representing approximately 1.009% of the Company’s EHBEBEITRN AT 1.009% °
issued share capital as at the date of this report.
Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the B FatEZSN  RARETIZRZH - BEEEREATHR
Directors or Chief Executive Officer had registered an interest or short AT EEAEBEENRD - MR HES

position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share option scheme”, “Directors’
and Chief Executive Officer’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 30 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of capital (%) Long position/
Name Notes Nature of interest Shares held #M{HZAAT 24T short position
=1 M RRME BENROEE BANEIL(%) HAE KB
Fortune United Group Limited (@) Directly Beneficial owned 294,072,000 37.07  Long position
BEREwAE A
Keysmart Enterprises Limited (@) Through controlled corporation 294,072,000 37.07  Long Position
BB AEREE A
Hunwick International Limited (@) Through controlled corporation 294,072,000 37.07  Long Position
BB AEREE A
Mdm. lu Pun (b) Family interest 294,384,000 37.11  Long Position
szt ENEL £ A
Time Lead Investments Limited (©) Directly Beneficial owned 40,000,000 5.04  Long Position
BEREaAE A
Toyo International Investment (d) Directly Beneficial owned 50,000,000 6.30 Long Position
Limited EEERER a5 )
RBERIEERRAR
Mdm. Lo Mei Sai (e) Family interest 50,000,000 6.30 Long Position
BEWMUL ENEL £ A
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of capital (%) Long position/
Name Notes Nature of interest Shares held #K{hAABER#IT short position
=1 MizE HEEME BFENRGBE RENBEBIL(%R) #HEXE
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing (d) & () Through controlled corporation 52,000,000 6.56 Long Position
RIS A RBEH QRS TR
Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong Q) Family interest 50,000,000 6.30 Long Position
KEF L+ REE R TR
0 Through controlled corporation 2,000,000 0.26  Long Position
BT QRS TR
UBS Group AG Person having a security 764,000 0.10  Long Position
interest in shares S
HBROHIFERBERDA
(h) Through controlled corporation 40,700,200 5.18 Long Position
BT QRS TR
Notes: M 5E
(8)  The issued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially (@) Fortune United Group Limited ) B % 7 & & M

owned by Keysmart Enterprises Limited and Hunwick International Limited
which are in turn, respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling and Mr. Hung
Yung Lai, Executive Directors of the Company.

Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested
in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

The issued capital of Time Lead Investments Ltd. is beneficially owned by Mr.
Li Tung Ming.

The issued capital of Toyo International Investment Limited is equally
beneficially owned by Mr. Leung Hong Man, the Non-executive Director of
the Company and his father Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

2,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Dragon Asia Industrial
(Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu
Sing and Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong, his wife, are each beneficially interested in
50% of the issued share capital of Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Limited.

Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.
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(h)  According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice of UBS Group AG
filed for the relevant event dated 22 December 2017 as shown on the website
of the Stock Exchange, UBS AG, UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited, UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd., UBS Fund Management
(Luxembourg) S.A. and UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG are directly
interested in 629,200 shares, 9,376,000 shares, 537,000 shares, 30,150,000
shares and 8,000 shares respectively. Since they are all controlled by UBS
Group AG, UBS Group AG is deemed to be interested in 40,700,200 shares
for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 57 to 157, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Key audit matter
BRETEE

Impairment testing of Property, plant and equipment
(“PPE”) and Construction in progress (“CIP”)

WFE BERRE(Y* BERRENDREEZIZ(ZZ
I#)EEEH

As at 31 December 2017, the Group reported PPE and CIP of
RMB520.9 million and RMB10 million, respectively. There is a
risk of impairment of the Group’s PPE and CIP particularly in
the intermediates and bulk medicines segment as this segment
reported losses in recent years. For this reason, the non-
current assets in the manufacture and sale of intermediates
and bulk medicines segment were subject to an impairment
test. Value-in-use models were used to assess the risk of
impairment and based on estimates including future sales,
gross margins, operating costs, the discount rate and the
assumptions inherent in those estimates. We focused on this
area because of the inherent judgement involved in the
impairment testing and the magnitude of the assets under
consideration.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNAEEZRARENSE

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, an evaluation
of the group’s policies and procedures to identify indicators for
potential impairment of PPE and CIP. We also assessed the
assumptions and methods used by the Group in the
impairment testing. In doing so, we involved our own valuation
experts. We assessed the assumptions adopted by the Group
which included the discount rate, the expected trend in
turnover, the gross margins, and the operating costs. We paid
attention to the forecasts used with respect to future revenues
and operating results by comparing the forecasts with the
historical performance of the respective CGU and the business
development plan.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB A RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

RARETEE

The Group’s disclosures about impairment test of PPE and CIP
are included in note 2.4 summary of significant accounting
policies — Impairment of non-financial assets, note 2.5
significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
— Impairment of non-financial assets, note 13 Property, plant
and equipment and note 15 Construction in progress to the
financial statements.

EEEFRAYE  BERREAREZTRRABEAZE
BAMHNMISMERMF24ETZSHECEHE - MiskosE
EectHE - HET RRREMBEEME - M 13%% -
BB R R 15 TR o

Provision for inventories

FEREE

The Group reported inventories of RMB121.1 million as at 31
December 2017. The Group had exposure to the impairment
risks of inventories arising from certain obsolete, slow-moving
and due to expiration. We focused on this area because
inventories were material to the Group as at 31 December
2017 and the determination of the impairment provision for
inventories involved a high level of management’s judgement
and estimates in future sales and technique innovation.
RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H EBESEAHEERARY
121188 - BEEEFERBR  BHECBHMELNTT
BERERRE - HMBINL  EAR EXEER_T—+F
TZA=T—BENEFEREXR  EFEREREESIRERE
IR B AR IR SH S I BT 813 O U R (5 o

The Group’s disclosures about provision for inventories are
contained in note 2.4 summary of significant accounting
policies — Inventories, note 2.5 significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions — Net realisable
value of inventories, note 6 Profit before tax and note 18
Inventories to the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AN ETNATEERRETFER

We evaluated the inventory impairment assessments made by
management, including expected selling prices and expiration
dates of the related inventories, and the Group’s future plan of
usage or sale. We assessed the aging reports of
pharmaceutical products, by tracing the production dates back
to the product release reports. We checked the condition of
inventories by physical inspection on a sample basis.
Furthermore, we checked the regulation updates to identify if
there were any potential indicators of impairment.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB A RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB A RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Lai Chee Kong.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic, for profit for the year

Diluted, for profit for the year

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+—_A=+—HILFE

A

HEMRAK

E7

H AU A N s
HEMDHER
TR E
HibE

M ER
FEfE—BEEE ARz 8N REE
BRBE TR R
Frig®t

REEER

AT &I
BREERA

BAREERERITEA
S REF

X DARFERRNE

B8 - A RO

Notes

B =

10

12

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
882,483 824,351
(320,934) (312,872)
561,549 511,479
30,372 24,425
(88,086) (98,895)
(82,491) (64,625)
(48,946) (38,928)
(13) (157)
(6,682) =
365,703 333,299
(72,725) (67,382)
292,978 265,917
292,978 265,917
RMBO0.3674 RMBO0.3314
RMBO0.3674 RMB0.3312
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEeEZHWER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE—T—+F+-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 292,978 265,917
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to be LA HIE S E D BB R
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent HEiham(BE) U
periods:
Exchange differences bE N Z 5 (4,794) 4,378
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME & ERBi%
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Hit 2w (EFE) WE8HE (4,794) 4,373
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR REERBEZE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX s zE 288,184 270,290
Attributable to: AT &IBE,
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=IN 288,184 270,290
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Construction in progress
Intangible assets

Investments in an associate

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Cash and bank

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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Notes

B =

13
14
15
16
17
27

18
19

20

21
22

23
24
25

31 December 2017 R=ZF—t&+=-A=+—H
2017 2016
—B—tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
520,860 566,321
39,134 40,175
9,991 5,776
35,748 24,909
43,648 -
4,688 6,729
654,069 643,910
121,133 124,746
313,214 225,660
472,975 220,958
8,743 7,794
611,077 663,296
1,527,142 1,242,454
143,404 87,938
160,997 98,104

- 9,104

15,648 5,510
320,049 200,656
1,207,093 1,041,798
1,861,162 1,685,708

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—+44% 59



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

31 December 2017 R=ZE—t&+—-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Government grants BT SR
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIHARE
Total non-current liabilities EmB B ElRE
Net assets FEE
EQUITY E
Equity attributable to owners of BARHEE AELER
the parent
Issued capital BEBITRM
Treasury shares EFR %
Reserves e
Total equity A
LI Kei Ling HUNG Yung Lai
Z=HR REEhiE
Director Director
BE BE
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Notes

B =

26
27

28
29
31

2017 2016
—B—tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
1,878 2,248
53,126 46,704
55,004 48,952
1,806,158 1,636,756
84,197 84,952

- (74)

1,721,961 1,651,878
1,806,158 1,636,756




At1 January 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss
for the year:
Exchange differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Exercise of share options

Final 2016 dvidend declared

Dividend on shares issued for

employee share options exercised

after 31 December 2016

Shares repurchased and cancelled

Shares repurchased in previous
year and cancelled this year

Equity-seftled share option
arrangements

Interim 2017 dividend

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2017

*

HoE-tE-F-A

AEREH

AERABRABE:

EiER

AEREANEER

fIfsmmE
SR-Z-AERERE
“E-7EtZA=t-A
iTmEERRE
HEARGHRS
EEEHRHREH
FEERRARN
KRR
WRE MR ER R

2 HFRERE
BREEHTER

REB—tFT-A=1-H

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=—E—+t&F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARERS
Share Capital Share Statutory  Exchange
Issued  Treasury  premium redemption option  Contributed surplus  fluctuation ~ Retained Total
Notes capital shares account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits equity
BEf EXER BRE EERS EX
it RE  ERRR  ROEE it i BARE Mg RBRR  REEN  ERER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETn ARBTn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR  ARETR
(note 28)  (note 29) (note30)  (note31)  (note31)  (note31)
(WE8)  (H&E29) (Wkso)  (W&E1)  (MES1)  (WES1)
84,952 (14) 60,281 3,400 24200 100,175 221,559 (6,046) 1,148,289 1,636,756
- - - - - - - - 202,078 292,978
- - - - - - - (4,794) - (4,794)
- - - - - - - (4,794) 292,978 268,184
30 112 - 4,499 - (1,100) - - - - 3511
- - - - - - - - (71,082) (11,082)
- - - - - - - - (70) (70)
28 (193) - (38,620) 798 - - - - (193) (39,413)
29 (74) 74 - - - - - - - -
30 - - - - 8,511 - - - - 8,511
11 - - - - - - - - (20,239) (20,239)
- - - - - - 33,980 - (33,980) -
84,197 - 26,160* 4,193* 31,631 100,75+ 255,539* (10,840 1,315,103 1,806,158

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

RMB1,721,961,000 (2016: RMB1,551,878,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

IS EEA X AREA1,721,961,0007T( = F— < 4F -
AR ¥1,551,878,0007T) 4R & M ISR LR EWY
B -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

At1 January 2016

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for

the year:
Exchange differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Exercise of share options

Final 2015 dividend declared

Dividend on shares issued for

employee share options exercised

after 31 December 2015
Shares repurchased and
cancelled
Shares repurchased and
subsequently cancelled
Equity-seftled share option
arrangements
Interim 2016 dvidend
Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2016

RZE-E-f-A
KEREF
REEAMEENE |
EizE
AERRENGEE
ffeahiE
ER-E-RERERE
“Z-RFt-A=1-A
hiEnESERE
GO
2812l

G
OB RS
IR AR RER

ZE ARG
BREEHTER

REB—FT-A=1-H

30

28

29

30

Equity

Attrioutable to owners of the parent

BRAEEAERER
Share Capital Share Statutory  Exchange
Issued Treasury premium  redemption option  Contributed suplus— fluctuation Retained Total
capital shares account resenve reserve surplus feserve resenve profits equity
BEf EX BikE EERS Ex
Bx  BRREG  ROEE  BERE BE  GARR MEE  RBER  REEN  ERER
RMB'0OO0  RWMB0CO ~ RMB0OO0 ~ RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR AREBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETD
(note 28) (note 29) (note 30) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31)
(Mitos)  (ME29) (o) (W&Est)  (W&Es)  (WEsy)
85,206 - 76,861 3,025 13,334 100,175 190,382 (10419 1015312 1,473876
- - - - - - - - 265,917 265917
- - - - - - - 43718 - 4,373
- - - - - - - 4313 265,917 270,290
47 - 2,122 - (637) - - - - 1,632
- - - - - - - - (80,648) (80,648)
- - - - - - - - f (5)
(301) - (15,349) 301 - - - - (301) (16,650)
- (74) (3,353 74 - - - - (74) (3421)
- - - - 11423 - - - - 11423
- - - - - - - - (20,735) (20,735)
- - - - - - RiRle - (31,177) -
84,952 (74) 60,281 3,400 24220 100,175 201,559 (6,046) 1148289 1,636,756
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of
an associate
Interest income
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Recognition of land use rights
Gain on disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:

Equity investments at fair value through

profit or loss
Equity-settled share option expense
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of impairment of trade
receivables

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and notes
receivables

Increase in prepayments

Increase in deposits and other
receivables

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
notes payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals

Decrease in government grants

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llV_\éiﬁﬁjﬁ%%

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+tF+—A=+—HIEFE

Notes
B aE
RETHHRERE
BR 5 A8 A
B TTIFEE
W% &R 5
il /N
& & E51E
A EHA 4
FERBmAAALBEIIRZ
Ix iR B r IR EMA 4
HEME  BER&HEEE D
E51a 6
e 6
| A E 16
T Hb{E A RERERR 6
HEBBESZURAALBEIEREZ
Ix i1 & e 6
DR ERE - FRE
BEEBRAARETRZ
feiERE 6
LA RS 48 S A+ R B AR 4 B S 6
T EMOR = Al #37 5HF
6
Yz - BB - RERE
13
FEUE 5 R IE Rk (o 1%
19

FER D

FEWE 5 R R IBF IR
(1&m), B

FEFIE IO

B K H b FEUGRIRIE N

EHEIRRITEFROR D
e E 5 MR IBFR
g, CRd)

Hit R REREM
g, ORd)
BB OR
EfFEH

REEHELNRSREFR

2017 2016
—E—+iF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARBT T
365,703 333,299
13 157

6,682 =
(21,284) (13,185)
(346) (367)

375 36
51,974 51,988
671 828
1,041 1,041
(304) (101)
(1,475) (402)
8,511 11,423
2,058 8,087

- 755

(219) =
413,400 393,559
1,555 14,914
(87,335) 56,513
(4,210) (708)
(649) (323)

- 10

55,466 (55,190)
67,008 (14,514)
(370) (435)
(54,124) (73,568)
390,741 320,258
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+F+-A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments at fair value through

profit or loss

(Increase)/decrease in term deposits with

maturity over three months

Purchase of wealth management products
Redemption of wealth management

products
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment and
construction in progress
Purchases of intangible assets

Purchases of equity investments at fair

value through profit or loss

Purchase of a shareholding in an associate
Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Repurchase of shares
Proceeds from bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Short-term deposits
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REZHNRERE

2 YA S
BUCEBBRARAEINERZ
PR B R B A
HEWE - BFE&REEBEBH
FS 3R
HEEBBBEARAEINERZ
PR B PTG 50R

(&), BB REE=EA

ZEBER
BEEMER
BOIEREm

BEWR - BEMEEEE R
rERgIiE

BEBLEAE
BESBBERURRETRZ
BHERE

BEN [ D F R g

RERSEANREREFER
MEZHNRERE

1T AR FTIS 3R
=AEPNSIE)
BSRITESRATREIHR S
BERITEFNRE
ERHE

EfTEE
MERDERNRE REFE
RERRSLEEWORD)
0% R
FNRERBLEEY

BRI PE B

FRESREEEEY

RERBEESEWERIMN

Ba RIRITHET
FEERITIF K

2017 2016
—B—tF —ERF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt EE ARB TR ARBT T
13,126 17,088

4 346 367
169 455

1,520 452

(150,330) 122,500

(449,000) (210,000)

210,000 =

(15,697) (25,433)

16 (11,510) (7,108)
(690) (4,060)

(50,330) -

(452,396) (105,739)

3,511 1,633

(41,532) (16,960)

- 17,992

(8,437) (18,391)

5 (13) (157)
(91,391) (101,388)

(137,862) (117,271)

(199,517) 97,248

663,296 563,280

(3,032) 2,768

460,747 663,296

138,045 129,407

322,702 533,889

460,747 663,296




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman lIslands on 20 September 2002 under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is located at
Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) underwent a reorganisation on 21 June 2008 to rationalise
the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which the
Company became the holding company of the Group (the “Group

Reorganisation”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2008.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
development, manufacture and sale of non-patented pharmaceutical
medicines including intermediate pharmaceuticals, bulk medicines
and finished drugs. In the opinion of the directors, Fortune United
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,

is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

RNARAEEHER

RinHz (ZER)BRAR([ARARNR=ZEE
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fift 9% = B b UE /2 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands * 1 3 2 & 2 b B 2 s ik Al &
B S 2T B 558 3385 4L /8 0, 301 3001~
02%F °

BREEEEBLLEARRRENE R R (FHE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RE AR EE

31 December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=—F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration Issued share/
Name and operations paid-up capital
AR, B®T/
PEEL AR &R EHRRE
Directly held
EERE
Dawnrays International Company Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$100
RInERARAR RERAREE 100%7T
Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital Hong Kong HK$100
(Asia) Limited BB HEA1007T
RinE MR EER (M)
AR
Indirectly held
BERE
Dawnrays International Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000
RnERRHERAA BE 758 500,000 70
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* Mainland China US$45,000,000
FNRIRHERR A" B ARE 45,000,000 7T
Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Mainland China US$6,000,000
Science and Technology Co., Ltd.* B AR 6,000,000 7T
FNRmBERM AR AR
Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000
K% (BB)BRAA £ % 500,0007T
Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Mainland China RMB3,000,000
Co., Ltd. # YN AR #3,000,0007
BRRRERFR AR
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Mainland China US$13,500,000
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. # CaETYNG 13,500,000 T
i () BERRARAR
s These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law as foreign-owned

enterprises.

: Dawnrays International Company limited (3 5 B X B% 19 & IR 2 7])
entered into an equity transfer agreement with an independent third
party on 1 February 2018 to sell all of its shares held in Guangdong
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..
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REARAEEER (F)

o) PR e
AABZMBARFEMT

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
A EEM
REBDL

Principal activities

FERHK

100%  Investment holding
REEKR

100%  Investment holding
REHER

100%  Investment holding and sale of
pharmaceutical products
RERREHEREER

100%  Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products
ERHEREER

100%  Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical intermediates
SUERIHERERRR

100%  Sale of pharmaceutical products
HEBEER

100%  Sale of pharmaceutical products
HEBEER

100%  Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical intermediates
RGN HERETRE

¢ ZEMBARIRTEAREMAINERED
#,

* RinBRROERARNR-_Z—-—N\F_-A—H
S 5 =77 7] AR E kB R A BV P
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss that have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of the subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RE AR EE

31 December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=—F=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the Scope of IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a significant
financial effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has been
made in note 35 to the financial statements upon the adoption of
amendments to IAS7, which require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate change in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15
Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 40
[FRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments!

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Long-term Interest in Associates and
Joint Venture?

Transfers of Investment Property"

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?®

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28!

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12
and IAS 232

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
= No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3

70 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BREE#U% (#23%) A A )

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
an employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are
modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification. On
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without
restating prior periods, but retrospective application is permitted if
they elect to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria are
met. The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS
39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and

hedge accounting. The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group will not restate comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance of

equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a
detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9. The
expected impacts relate to the classification and measurement and

the impairment requirements are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the classification and measurement
of financial assets depends on two assessments: the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s
business model for managing the financial asset. The Group’s
bills receivable of RMB40,535,000 as at 31 December 2017
are managed with a business model under which bills
receivable are not held to collect contractual cash flows as the
Group regularly endorses bills receivable to suppliers prior to
their expiry date. Accordingly, these bills receivable will be
reclassified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

IMPAIRMENT

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on
an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis
or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated based
on the present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining
life of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the possible default
events on its other receivables within the next twelve months.
The Group has determined that no provision for impairment will
increase or decrease upon the initial adoption of the standard.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a
gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in
December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirement, under
IFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in IFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1
January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional adjustment to
be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not
be material.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

The Group’s principal activities consist of the manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products. The expected impacts arising from the
adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as follows:

PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are more
detailed than those under the current IAS 18. The presentation
requirements represent a significant change from current practice
and will significantly increase the volume of disclosures required in
the Group’s financial statements. Many of the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed that
the impact of some of these disclosure requirements will be
significant. In particular, the Group expects that the notes to the
financial statements will be expanded because of the disclosure of
significant judgements made on determining the transaction prices of
those contracts that include variable consideration, how the
transaction prices have been allocated to the performance
obligations, and the assumptions made to estimate the stand-alone
selling price of each performance obligation. In addition, as required
by IFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue recognised from
contracts with customers into categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are
affected by economic factors. It will also disclose information about
the relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue
and revenue information disclosed for each reportable segment.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-to-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which
the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and
finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1
January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS
16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which transition

74 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BRES#U% (#23%) A B A )

2.3

g

C BB e R AR 2 BB B I 3R
(#&)

BB B mE LR FE 16N T —RF— AR
o MBS ERIE17REE - BBRME
RERBEZEeRBEAVETLHEL B
HE RERBZESREBE 5RLLHE—
EBERZBEGZEEREBE 27 R ESL R HE
BEZREEARZHEE - ZERHFIHER - 5t
B 2IREEHENRA - WEISEEAG
REZBHERABEENREE %ZENBERT
AEAAMEEENHEER R e —KEEE
EHEREHHEE RNEERMKBEH  AEA
RN EERELEEN RSB E(BIEE
BE) RRRAMERBEEENENSEE (A
EREEE) RIFBERAREENABERS
HERIE40RIREMENTESE - IS REAE
BRI YE - BERREER > SRIBER
BEEERBRANRRFITE RMEMRERE
e - HEABHKREIRBRBEERENEM
gk @ABENKTIRD o ABARKAD FIHE
REERENFERAXREEREEENTE
Fs o ABATKERE T EHELEREHNT
EHERE  fIHREENEESIRNEE
AN R — IR B R E M 5| BOR AR
ENHEE - AHA-REEHEHEAE
MERERSBERREENAE - BREE
REENF16H/AZ L BEAR S ERE 17
SAHEANGETREESR - HEAREERE
FERBEIFR & ERIE 17 SRBR 2 BRI A
FHEETHIE IRz REEHERBE
HE - BRI IREERIFE 1657 2SFAHEA R
HEAABRBREE ST ERNFE17RIELES T
B o ATHATEEBIAZEEYIER KL B
AT ABAZEL - AEEREHR _F—N1
F—A—HERABERMBREERE 1655 -
AREER EFHERANBERMEREENROT



2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 36(a) to
the financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately RMB579,000. Upon adoption of IFRS
16, certain amounts included therein may need to be recognised as
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis,
however, will be needed to determine the amount of new rights of
use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and
short term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and

new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to IAS 40, issued in December 2016, clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a
change in use. The amendments should be applied prospectively to
the changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An
entity should reassess the classification of property held at the date
that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify
property to reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective
application is only permitted if it is possible without the use of
hindsight. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying IAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. Entities may apply
the interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective
basis, either from the beginning of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior
reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight
or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application,
without the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over

those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group companies. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that

functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of

monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International
Company Limited (“Dawnrays (BVI)”), Dawnrays Biotechnology
Capital (Asia) Limited (“Dawnrays Biotechnology”), Dawnrays
International Company Limited (“Dawnrays International”) and
Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays Pharma”)
(collectively the “Overseas Companies”) is the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
companies are translated into RMB at the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rate
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of the Overseas Companies are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the Overseas Companies which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rate for the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates
and sales taxes or duties. Revenue is recognised on the following
bases:

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

where the Group operates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

24 BEXSHBEREE (B)

BIE

PRISH B E BRI AR IR IMER IR
BT REERRIINER - BIEEMEEK
BT RERRER AT R

EHREH
EHREREERAERBARTKE LN T
MERBNSHETE  ZFBNDERERA
SEZENERRALEBERENERSHRE
7B FE SR B L B S E AR R (R BT
EPDEE -

IESEBLIE
EREMREENABENNERE LA BT RE
MENEREAELHANMAERREEZR  AKA
BEAFHRELEPT ISR -

ERRRESUEZRIGERELHER
& HETBRERS :

s MWEAREHBAMGEMNER  EHNIBA
BRAHEBRE - FRIBEBEANRZS
TRERNEEXARE MAERS
B HEt A ERERRANEREIES

=
mEE R

o HRSRMEATRENERHEEE
ERTE - 5 HE 50 2 B s A
AT LA ) - bR BB 2 R A B
RS A E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —2—+#4&% 83



Notes to Financial Statements

B RE AR EE

31 December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a

reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries”) are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance

with the rules of the central pension scheme.

ACCOMMODATION BENEFITS

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland China are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

86 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SREs&.%5 (12R3) HRR A 7

RABEREE
AEFERBERTMEAESHABRI /A ERS
MR B RES A B E B R — EEBHK
sl E ARS8 ([RE2FE)) - HKE%E
DiREEEARFEETADLMEL - LRIE
BB EMRANI M NRBBERPN
B BRSAENEERAREEENH - A
BYEENESRE - AEENEIHKNE
BETEEREEREREMA  HRES
B ERR ARENEZERHN - £
BEREZAZHESKABERABRT - AR
CIALEE -

REE R BIRRE 2 E e M B A ) ([ Bl Ak
MERR M E THESEbHE R TEEN
RIRRET B o HBURIRT RIRIKET SRR AN
REH B X B EERPHIR -

EEEF
BERSATEAEATREEETLEENEE
REOER - DRELR BBERMNE



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an appropriate capitalisation
rate shall be applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants (the Company’s directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model, further details of which are given in note 30 to the
financial statements. The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the participants as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (further
details are given in note 12).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial investments, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the

case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
as defined by IAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
positive net changes in fair value presented as other income and
gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition

and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through

profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response

to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BBRESTTHERME(E)
(Cont’d)
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) BRERHEMMBEEE (E)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d) BEBETE (8

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until

maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis

that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses

in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence

that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit
or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective

hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes payables,
other payables and loans and borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does

not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition

and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:
Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings 20 to 25 years
Machinery and other equipment 51to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 25 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss

when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases, which are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL) (Cont’d)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production. The
estimated residual value is zero.

Estimated
Category useful life
5l fhEt A EAF S
Software 10 years
L/ T&
Deferred development costs 10 years
IRFE BN +F

102 bAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SREs8.%5 (1233 ) HIR A 7

B/ EE (BEKRN) (B

A AFRERNENEESFRERNLIZR
EREGEHEMETRERNR - ZBTLEET
TH#E - IEAFHERNETLEENAER
FHEBFETRE - AEER BRI AL
FHER O o MAF - BRABERE
% A] {2 A 4 AR Rt B R R B IRV B AT 8%
AER o

WS A
AR E ARNELR B BE KRR -

METERMNBARMEEN S HEEAKER
IARE B IA T B T IAB AR © 87
BESTKILAERREEERM EAT 5
RERBRRENERASIHEEE  BENM
EERKEERE  ABETRBEENER &
BESR] SEMh At ERM B MRS H - T A Ll
BENEMMBEHAERLERTIEER -

I FE R % AR T 3R B AN EDR (E TR (B S 1R 51
R YAERZREBERMABRAREE R
RIZEREER < FEREE - AFIRELT -

Annual
amortisation
rate

BEBHLR

10%

10%



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARETTBERME (8)

(Cont’d)

TREASURY SHARES

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s

own equity instruments.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and

condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average basis

Finished goods and Cost of direct materials and labour and a
work in progress proportion of manufacturing overheads

based on the normal operating capacity

but excluding borrowing costs

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on

demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted or pledged as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
general guidance for provisions above; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised in accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

RELATED PARTIES (Cont’d)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

106 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SRES&1%5 (2R3

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a

liability when they are proposed and declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgements that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a
product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, 25 EFTESTTHE - E5rRBRR (E)

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Cont’d)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on assessment of their
recoverability. The identification of impairment of receivables requires
management’s judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables and impairment loss/reversal of impairment in the period
in which such an estimate has been changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste or
competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates at

each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators

that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and has two reportable segments as
follows:

(@  Manufacture and sale of intermediates and bulk medicines (the
“intermediates and bulk medicines” segment)

(b)  Manufacture and sale of finished drugs (including antibiotics
finished drugs and non-antibiotics finished drugs) (the “finished
drugs” segment)

Management monitors the operating results of these operating
segments for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, government grants, dividend income, fair
value gains/losses from the Group’s financial instruments as well as
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and bank, equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank loans, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

BE-Z—tHF

Year ended 31 December 2017 +—A=+—HLIEFE
Segment revenue: PEBA :

Sales to external customers HINEE

Intersegment sales DEREE
Segment results PEEE
Reconciliation: FEE

Unallocated gains R Blias

Corporate and other EREA

unallocated expenses KO
Finance costs W% E A
Profit before tax BRA5 A& A
HE-_T—KRF

Year ended 31 December 2016 +—-A=+—HILFE
Segment revenue: AERA

Sales to external customers HINEE

Intersegment sales DIFEHEE
Segment results DEEE
Reconciliation: FE -

Unallocated gains Ko

Corporate and other PR REM

unallocated expenses ROBEX

Finance costs &R

Profit before tax BB A A
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Intermediates

DEER (&

)

Elimination of

and bulk Finished intersegment
medicines drugs sales Total

FREER H8H
R ME SEBHE Hmy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
156,882 725,601 - 882,483
37,671 - (37,671) -
194,553 725,601 (37,671) 882,483
(5,355) 488,211 - 482,856
25,946
(143,086)
(13)
365,703

Intermediates Elimination of

and bulk Finished intersegment
medicines drugs sales Total

& K iH
[} % KB DEREE L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TEX
163,586 660,765 = 824,351
50,028 — (50,028) —
213,614 660,765 (50,028) 824,351
(14,489 419,905 — 405,416
23,598
(95,558)
(157)
333,299

)BRAF]



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017

Segment assets:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

As at 31 December 2016

Segment assets:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

R-FE—+tH+-A=+-—H

HERE :

Az
RERHL
KORAE

REE

TEEE:

A
DERAMKARAR

R-B—R"F+-_A=+—H

TREE !

B

3. ZHEHM

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines

TR KRR R
RMB’000
ARBT

432,066

114,929

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines

Hh ] B8 I SR 2
RMB’000
AREF T

368,763

72,345

Notes to Financial Statements
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Finished
drugs
5%
RMB’000
ARBF T

560,628

125,182

Finished
drugs

P %
RMB’000
AREFTT

531,042

65,146

Total

e
RMB’000

ARET R

992,694

1,188,517

2,181,211

240,111

134,942

375,053

Total
Ftd
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

899,805

986,559

1,886,364

137,491

112,117

249,608
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 3. DHEERGE)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION WESE
(a) Revenue from external customers (@) REIBEFEHUA
2017 2016
—E—t5F —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBT T
Mainland China A B A R 759,088 723,982
Other countries H B 123,395 100,369
882,483 824,351
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the AR AERERBR A HETTE
customers.
(b) Non-current assets (b) FERBEE
The Group’s operations are substantially based in Mainland AEENEEFESPRERRARE - K
China and 95% of the non-current assets, excluding deferred FEEBUIERBEE (T RIERLER
tax assets and investments in associates, of the Group are HEERRBE AR ZKE) EREFH
located in Mainland China. Therefore, no further analysis of REE - BEERBDEENMEERHE—F
geographical information is presented. DT ARZ 5 ©
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4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 4,

Revenue, represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts.

WA~ HRA R Wz

WARHEERMGRRE -

# o

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue
Sale of goods

Other income

Bank interest income

Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Gross rental income

Foreign exchange differences

Government grants

Others

Gains
Gain on sales of scrapped materials
Gain on disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:
Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
within five years

L¢

A
HEE

\H]]E

D

Hitr e A

RITHBUA
BRBEURAREIRZ
AR E RBLE WA
AT KA

PE N EHE

B AR

Hitp

W 28
th 5 & am MY U 2

HEBBBREARNAEINRZ

PR & B Wt

Nt ENE - FER
FBBRARETIRZ
PR E

AN RFRBREEN
RITERZHE

B oI EEF

58 M

AREBWA « HWA KK AT T
2017 2016
S —TxE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
882,483 824,351
21,284 13,185
346 367
2,241 309
- 6,966
2,957 2,580
719 515
27,547 23,922
1,046 -
304 101
1,475 402
2,825 503
30,372 24,425
2017 2016
—E—tF —FTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETIT
13 157
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRFANEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEE R BT A SR R, GEA) THIE
TBEET :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR® TR ARET T
Cost of inventories sold* EERFERA" 317,544 310,144
Depreciation e 13 51,974 51,988
Recognition of land use rights** T 3 R R 14 1,041 1,041
Research and development costs: 5e M AN

Amortisation of intangible assets*** A A 16 460 596
Current year expenditure REEZH 35,189 26,132
35,649 26,728

Minimum lease payments under LB T 2 &ERS

operating leases:

Buildings EF 289 984
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z ENEM N & 1,458 1,388
Employee benefit expense (including EERNAXZ (BEEER

directors’ and chief executive officer's  @EH S (K5E7)) :

remuneration (note 7)):

Wages and salaries TERY 2 87,225 64,799

Equity-settled share option expense VARG HE 2 T e B AR A A S 8,511 11,423

Retirement benefits RRE A 7,343 7,331

Accommodation benefits EEmEA 3,621 3,549

Other benefits H A 13,915 12,089

120,615 99,191
Foreign exchange differences, net W =R JFEE 6,289 (6,966)
Impairment of property, plant WE - BE - ZERE 13

and equipment - 755
Write-down of inventories to 7 &R 2= n] &35 )5E

net realisable value 2,058 8,087
Fair value gains, net: AaEE - FEE

Equity investments at fair value through  &381825 A R 2 {EFBRE 2 4

profit or loss g (1,475) (402)
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 4 (21,284) (13,185)
Loss on disposal of items of property,  HEWE « HEREES

plant and equipment THE /M EE 375 36
Gain on disposal of equity investments & #E BB AR R ETIEZ

at fair value through profit or loss B S 4 (304) (101)
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d)
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BRI AR R (4)

* The depreciation of RMB42,160,000 for the year is included in “Cost of

inventories sold”.

ok

The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in

“Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Other

expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and

(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Bonus
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

BE

H Ao Fr B -

¥ R REDEN
Be

LA P HE 211 ) R s b e S
BIRE B K

ok

AEEFERFT AR 42,160,000 TE A

[BEEFE/RA] -

FARNLIEREERT ARG BEERN 17

BEM] -

FRRETEERH AL

ER]-

EERBEME

R ERRAN [HAi

BiF R REE D BEH S 383(1)@), (),
O B MEn R RATHER FE =S (EEFEZER I
B)MFBEFANNES RAKMS0T

2017 2016
—F—tF N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTTE
935 978

3,669 3,602
4,680 3,757
2,612 4,198

76 65

11,037 11,5622
11,972 12,500
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 7. EEREIME (B

REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(@) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (a)
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

Mr. Pan Xue Tian EEREE(RZTE—LF
(resigned on 1 July 2017) +A—HEE)

Mr. Choi Tat Ying, Jacky BOERST A

Mr. Lo Tung Sing, Tony BREETE

Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi** EDE, Ronald Hao Xi %t 4 **
(re-designated on 1 July 2017) (RM=—ZE—+F+ A —BEAT)

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2016: Nil).
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AEEBIIFATESTNBRENT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
94 177

187 177

187 177

94 —

562 531
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Mo (ZB—RF - |) -



Notes to Financial Statements
B ER AR I EE

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 7. EEREIME (B

REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (b) HITES FHTESERER

AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonus expense contributions remuneration
e 2ER DR ER 1 Bihe
we BENER ®e  BRERX Bl WegsE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETrn AR¥Trn AR¥Tn AR®Tn  AR%TR
2017 t 3
Executive directors: HIES:
Ms. Li Kei Ling THERIT 4 946 - - 20 1,007
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ERELE 4 582 - - 20 643
Mr. Li Tung Ming™* TR L 4 582 - - 20 643
123 2,10 - - 60 2,293
Non-executive directors: FRTESE:
Mr. Leung Hong Man 2RR%E 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi** EDE, Ronald Hao Xi &4 **
re-designated on 1July 2017) ~ (R=E—+%5+A—H
) % ; ; - ] o
250 - - - - 250
Chief executive officer. e
Mr. Chen Shaojun RAZELE - 1,559 4,680 2,612 16 8,867
373 3,669 4,680 2,612 76 11,410
2016 ZE-RE
Executive directors: HTES:
Ms. Li Kei Ling* THETL" 41 936 - - 20 997
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RS 41 576 - - 20 637
Mr. Li Tung Ming TRETE 41 576 - - 20 637
123 2,088 - - 60 2,211
Non-executive directors: FHRTES:
Mr. Leung Hong Man PRREE 147 - - - = 147
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi %&£ 177 - - - - 177
324 — — = — 324
Chief executive officer: e
Mr. Chen Shaojun® RAERLE"
(appointed on 18 April 2016) (RZ2—1E
MA+NBHZR) - 1414 3,757 4,198 5 9,374
447 3,502 3,757 4,198 65 11,969
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 7. EEREIME (B
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (b) HBITES - FHTESRAR(H)
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Cont’d)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMBESETREXREREEAHNE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. K% HE ©
8 Ms. Li Kei Ling was appointed to act as the chief executive - $%f$ﬁiﬁé:i§fﬁizﬂ_a?&§
officer of the Company with effect from 1 March 2015 and EZ%Z’K@E%@%% BRR=F—"FHEA
resigned on 18 April 2016. Mr. Chen Shaojun was appointed to T/\BBHE ﬁ%%ﬁ??ﬁiﬁé:%*ﬁﬁ
act as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect AT NBREERA AR -
from 18 April 2016.
** Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi was re-designated from Non-executive - EDE, Ronald Hao Xi_i%ib‘é:%—ti
Director to Independent Non-executive Director with effect from tﬂ__ Rl EmTESHERBLIE
1 July 2017. WITES -
***  Mr. Li Tung Ming resigned as executive director of the Company o FRPFEER=ZZ—\F=-A=+=AH
on 23 February 2018. BERRAINITES ©
8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. IhfuBREHEE
The five highest paid employees during the year included the chief FRNAUG=FEERRAILR—NESE  ®
executive officer and a director, details of whose remuneration are SE7HEFBEN EXHIET S = (=
set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining —RF M) IESRIEREERFEERN
three (2016: three) non-director and non-chief executive officer FAMH IO -

highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+fF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e - ERE R EYEF 2,860 2,141
Equity-settled share option expense VA s =2 45F i i A e el S 633 1,342
Pension scheme contributions RN ETEIER 75 125
3,568 3,608
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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hfumkeHES (&)

MeeBN T THARNFERERIFERES
HENEB AT

Number of employees

EEAE
2017 2016
—E—+ifF —E—RF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T FE 4% 1,000,0007T - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 71,000,001 7T & 7% 1,500,000 7T 2 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 71,500,001 7T & A # 2,000,000 7T 1 =
3 3

During the year, share options were granted to one non-director and
non-chief executive officer highest paid employee in respect of his
service to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief

executive officer highest paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ACCOMMODATION
BENEFITS

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), the Company, Dawnrays
International Company Limited, Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Limited and Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Limited have
participated in the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee, to provide retirement benefits
to their respective Hong Kong employees. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme are made in accordance with the statutory limits prescribed
by the MPF Ordinance.

FA - —BIEERFEBESFTHEERAR
RAEE RS MER THERE  FHEHRRMG
HRHEOWES - ZMERBHRNERR
ERZBREARERNR TEEERBEER
FEMBHRZSBCAE LRIFERIFEER
SHERNFHEEZA -

RABENRIEEER

BRCEFIERES S ERGD ([RES R
MBE - ARA - RIEEBRKRONERAF X
W% (EB)BRARRRGEYREHR (T
MBERABTEMA—RBEE B (HBILE
AABTEZERENRTE)  REBEERH
RRAER] o Mo TE 2 5 BIE B BRI IZ MR8
REEOIFETHANRERBERE °
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O

10.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ACCOMMODATION
BENEFITS (Cont’d)

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) state
regulations, the Mainland China Subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme. All employees are entitled to an
annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic
salary amount of the geographical area of their last employment at
their retirement dates. The Mainland China Subsidiaries are required
to make contributions to the local social security bureau at 20% to
22% (2016: 20% to 22%) of the previous year’s average basic salary
amount of the geographical area where the employees are employed
by the Mainland China Subsidiaries.

The Group has no further obligation for the payment of pension

benefits beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the Mainland
China Subsidiaries and their employees are each required to make
contributions to an accommodation fund at 8% to 10% (2016: 8% to
10%) of the salaries and wages of the employees which is
administered by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration
Centre. There is no further obligation on the part of the Group except

for such contributions to the accommodation fund.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant obligation
apart from the contributions as stated above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 are:

Current income tax EHpTEH

Current income tax charge BT
Deferred income tax (note 27) FEREFE (M5E27)
Total tax charge for the year REEHIAT H B
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10.

RAREFNREERERN (&)

BRBEBEREREE @ FREAENEARES
HEZRRTE - TAEREREEKAHLARE
ZEMERBRIEMNFHEATSHETL
Bt B FERKS o B AEEHBARAER
Bt e RERHN  #HRIREEZERTEH
REEH B A R E EFHFHEARTFEH20%
E20% (ZZT—/N4F : 20% E22%) 5T ©

B bt ) 2 HRD -
AR RAB R o

AEBEWERHATH

REFENBERALER - PEKERBR
AkFEEREESERREENFERTENS
Z10% (ZF—RF : 8% E10%) M —HBER
BEEBHLERNERSESHA - RZIAN
BRAEEESNOHEZSN  REBEYEEMBERE -

RZBE—+F+ZA=+—H K E@#RX
oh > REBEWBEMBAEE -

FRi&%t

HE—_ZT—+tFR-_ZF—"F+-_A=+—H
IFEAERIYENEZBAXIEHOT :

2017 2016
—F—tF N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR
64,262 61,028
8,463 6,354
72,725 67,382




10.

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an undertaking from
the Governor-in-Council that no law which is enacted in the Cayman
Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits, income, gain or
appreciation shall apply to the Company or its operations. The
undertaking for the Company is for a period of 20 years from 8
October 2002. Accordingly, the Company is not subject to tax.

The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) is
not subject to income tax, as this subsidiary does not have a place
of business (other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the BVI.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to tax at a statutory
corporate income tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) under the income
tax rules and regulations of Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made as the Group had no assessable profits
arising in its respective Hong Kong subsidiaries during the year
(2016: Nil).

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law effective from 1
January 2008, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are all subject to

income tax at the rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”) was qualified as a High-New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) of Jiangsu Province. As a result,
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical had been entitled to a
concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for three years commenced
on 1 January 2008 and would apply for renewal of the qualification

every three years.

All other subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject to the corporate
income tax rate of 25% in 2017.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Frig®i (&)

BREFREHERBRRE(—ANNFEFTAX)
Folfk AARCEFSEESRITHRBMRE
MERSTEEIRHARBLEEBNMEE
F A~ RS IR EET - HAR R R A
KA EE_F+ANBRBER-_T5F-
it - ANRBHEN -

TR B 4 B R BE B R A SZ BV P B 1 B B R4
ST REMBARRNEBHBARAESIL
LA (MR EERIN) LB ERE
7 o

REFENAMEHARNERG - FENE AR
BEEELEMBHRE166%(ZF—RF:
16.6%) @Mt - R AKBRAERERTENE
MEBARYEELRRVUGH - RYJ|ELEE
FMEBIELBEE (T —RF &) -

BRER-ZZNF - —HRERNTREEE
FREHUE - PREREMBARNARESBER
TR 25% FT 1S 50 R EHL

RIZZNFTA-+—R #HMNRHRES
BRAB([ENRInREE ) BEUT &S = %M
EE(SHRMEE]) ER - At #&MREK
HEAgE _TT\F-A—BHEN=FAZ
H15%MEBEBMEREXL B =FRFERED

REAENAEEMHERARR T —tFA
12 25% MR BN E S

o
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10.

122 bAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SRES&.%] (2R3

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the country or jurisdiction in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate to

10.

the effective tax rate, are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax

At the PRC’s statutory income tax
rate of 25% (2016: 25%)

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax concession
or lower tax rate enacted by local authority

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current income
tax of previous years

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax credit for qualified research
and development expense

Tax losses not recognised

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

At the effective income tax rate of 19.89%
(2016: 20.22%)

BRPT SR AT & RHEF

B BEE RSB R 25%
—T—RF  25%)

A= RIBE H R Aok & e
BETREME 2 M E
REBFBEWE AR Z IS

FME BN E
ERBEFEEH
FriS i < A%
TR 2 sz

A& IETHIBR RO &
HREH

RUER T IAE 18

MR AR Z AT 0T T B 18

RERFSHIEA19.89%
(ZZF—75:20.22%)
VERAR

Frig i (8

i

)

RIBPBECEREHE - RhBIAEEKZE SN
BRECEMIFREESIRNRE - AR
10% HOTRE R BURTRINTL - ZREB —TT/N\F
—A—HEAERN WERAR-_FTLF+-A
=t—RRERNERF o b BAEREIIFIREE
PrE RDERER B R AT B ek - R A SRAEUE
B’\J?E?D%R?R o ARBEHERBE 5% o Ft -
B-TZEN\F—HA B A&EEARETE
Kﬁiﬁlé@ﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁ@%ﬂﬁn A Ay B
BRETERIEHRELR -

PR TR R A5 B A LA AR 22 R Ko B R AR 47 Y /8
AEMBER AR AER R E 2 TR
SHENERBRERGFREZRAHEER - L&

n

EARMEREERRE ZERIOT
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
365,703 333,299
91,426 83,325
(37,161) (34,499)
15,291 13,848
79 ©)
3,439 3,120
(2,347) (1,747)
3,152 3,378
(1,154) (34)
72,725 67,382
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12.

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L
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DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Interim — HK$0.03 (2016: HK$0.03) PHIR R - FERARER0.037T
per ordinary share ZZT— X A¥0.037T) 20,239 20,735
Proposed final — HK$0.12 (2016: HK$0.1) FURAEIAR S - BFELEATEEE0.127T
per ordinary share (ZZT—"F : B¥0.17T) 76,826 71,082
97,065 91,817
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of F R ?*E’HEHHHX AR AR AR R A F
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general ANE
meeting.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12. BREEBEREREFEAELERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 797,416,901 (2016:
802,423,749) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares

into ordinary shares.

BREABFZIEG QAL BREREE AR
IEARF R R FE R BT E BRI 2 I
¥ 15 B B1797,416,901 % ( = T — X F:
802,423,749 %) 5t & o

REFE#E R SR AN BB D 2 It
FHRBRERFTESRELABFNNFEAR
BITE BB LT Iﬂ@iﬁkiﬂﬁl,ﬂﬁ&
SBIERNEREMBRASEERITHER

Z IR AR o
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12. BAREEREREEAEBLERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Cont’d) (&)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based THAREAEGRERBNREEEEREA
on: MEEE
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Earnings R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders B} A 7] & 3@ IR 2515 B A FE(E 5 T
of the parent 292,978 265,917
Number of shares
R EE
2017 2016
—E—+F ZEREF
Thousands Thousands
Fix Tz
Shares 8y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st &SI EREF|FIEEAFERN
in issue during the year used in the basic BT E BRI T H
earnings per share calculation 797,417 802,424
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEESER R — N
number of ordinary shares: 1 AR AR A
Share options FEAR - 557
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FtEHEF Z(EHFAEE 2
adjusted for the effect of dilution DNHE 2 15 - 3 A AR 81 797,417 802,981
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:

As at 1 January 2016

Additions

Transferred from construction
in progress (note 15)

Disposal

Transfers (a)

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017

Additions

Transferred from construction
in progress (note 15)

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

As at 1 January 2016

Depreciation provided for the year

Impairment for the year

Disposals

Transfers (a)

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2016

and 1 January 2017
Depreciation provided for the year
Disposals
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2017

Net book value:
As at 31 December 2017

As at 31 December 2016

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

13. Y% - BENKE

Machinery
Leasehold and other Office Motor
land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BER
g+ 5 Hfkta BAZRE A& 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIL ARETT ARBTTI ARBTTL ARETT ARBTIL
A
R=E-~F-F-F 26,249 262,612 629,666 10,694 12,448 941,669
RE - 43 1517 478 553 2,591
fERTRER (Hi15)
= 5,683 5,105 13 6,669 17470
e - - (2,789) (167) (1,952) (4,908)
g7 - 241 (269) 2 = =
EHAx 1944 313 - 9% - 2,355
RZE-RETZA=1-H
R=Z-t£-F-H 28,193 268,892 633,236 11,138 17,118 959,177
RE - - 612 882 - 1,494
ERIRER (M 15)
- 306 6,378 68 1,239 7,991
e - - (3,845) @12 (783) (5,040)
AR (2,066) (332) - (105) (#1) (2,544)
RZB-t£+ZA=1-A 26,127 268,866 636,381 11,571 18,133 961,078
ZiHTERAE -
R-Z-A~E-F-R 100 76,944 249495 7,457 10,440 344 436
ERiTERE 3 1,755 37,911 823 1,466 51,988
ERRE - - 755 - - 755
e - - (2,510) (150) (1,757) (8417)
8% - 21 (28) 7 - =
EHRE 7 48 - 39 - 94
RZB-3"E+-A=1-A
R=Z2-t£-F-A 140 88,768 285,623 8,176 10,149 392,856
ERTERME 31 11,844 37,161 m 2,167 51,974
ik - - (3,420) (31) (705) (4,496)
ERRE (10 (56) - (48) 2 (116)
R=E-tF+=B=t-H 161 100,556 319,364 8,528 11,609 440,218
KEFE:
R=E-tF+=B=t-H 25,966 168,310 317,017 3,043 6,524 50,860
R=E-~E+ZB=1-H 28,053 180,124 347613 2,962 7,569 566,321
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

(@  Transfers represented the reclassification between buildings,
office equipment, machinery and other equipment.

(b) At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
and building in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB31,815,000 were mortgaged to secure a

bank loan (note 25).
14. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments
under operating leases and their carrying amounts are analysed as

13. #% - BEKRE (E)

(@) HBARET RAEZRE HERHE
ERIEHIE DR ©

b)) R-ZE—RE+-A=+—08 A&£H
ETEBHETHREFFEREMENA
R ¥31,815,000 C E B IER —FRTT
B (fizE25) °

14. TR

REE 2 T HfE AERREERNEN 2T
HERREEREEIHTAT

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—REHEE 40,175 41,216
Recognised during the year F AR (1,041) (1,041)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HEEE 39,134 40,175
15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. EETIRE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFTT
As at 1 January n—H—H 5,776 4,304
Additions NE 12,206 19,420

Transferred to property, Y - BB KRG (HEE138)
plant and equipment (note 13) (7,991) (17,470)
Disposals = - (478)
As at 31 December NR+=-—A=+—H 9,991 5,776
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16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:
As at 1 January
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

As at 1 January

Amortisation provided for
the year

Disposals

As at 31 December

Net book value:
As at 31 December

As at 1 January

Mt=A=t-8H

R EERRE

R—A—H
FREH

&

Mt=A=t-H

BREEE
R+-R=+—H

R—A—8

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

16. EBLEE

2017 2016
=S “ERF
Deferred Deferred
development development
costs Software Total costs Software Total
EREMBRA B# BE EERREAA i k]

RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETE ARETRT  ARETR

42,239 1,129 43,368 35,226 2,312 37,538
9,988 1,522 11,510 7,013 9% 7,108

- (1) (177) - (1,278) (1,278)
52,207 2,474 54,701 42,239 1,129 43,368
17,677 782 18,459 17,081 1,808 18,909
460 211 671 596 232 828

- (17) (177) - (1,278) (1,278)
18,137 816 18,953 17,677 782 18,459
34,090 1,658 35,748 24,562 347 24,909
24,562 347 24,909 18,145 484 18,629
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets EIEFEE

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

17. R—BEBEQRAZRE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
43,648 -

ITEBRERBZFHBAOT

Percentage of

Place of

ownership interest

incorporation/ attributable
registration to the Group
and business KEBEEMNL
Name =2 EER WERERER  Principal activity
218 REME Bolk TEEE
AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. Mainland China 35 Research and Development of biotechnology
and bio-pharmaceutical products
REERT (BR)BEFRAR m B A R BN B A R R B

During the year, Dawnrays Biotechnology, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, invested Phase 1 registered capital of RMB50,330,000
as agreed in a joint venture contract (as agreed in such contract,
Dawnrays Biotechnology proposed to acquire 35% shares of AD
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“AD Pharmaceuticals”) at
RMB150,000,000 in total). According to this contract, Dawnrays
Biotechnology shall invest the remaining capital by installments as
per the completion of the clinical trial of the project by AD
Pharmaceuticals. For the year ended 31 December 2017, AD
Pharmaceuticals reported the R&D and administrative expenses
approximately RMB19,090,000 in total. As a result, the Group
shared, in proportion to the investment percentage, an investment
loss approximately of RMB6,682,000.
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FR - AEEHBTRRIRIEDIESELE
ERAE(RERBERKEMRIZELCE SR
AR # 150,000,000 0 A A EaE S (EXR)
BEEARAR ([EBERT |)35% 2 i) 1A
F—HaFME A S AR 50,330,000 7T © R
BEKEAR - KRR 5TKIE B HIRAH
BIBN RIGEMKIBRREABTHIRE
HoM—BE—tE+-_A=+—HIFERE
MRS AGHERSBTREARADARE
19,090,000 7T * AL 7N Bk 1% & b AR
HEBRH AR 6,682,000 7T °



17.

18.

INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)

Notes to Financial Statements

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in

respect of AD Pharmaceuticals adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

financial statements:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Loss for the year

INVENTORIES

At cost or net realisable value:
Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

MBEE
FRBEE
mBAE
FRBEE

FEE

AEE AL
KREREE
WA
AEZER
18.

AR A A R BUREE
B E
R

LK o

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of inventories carried

at estimated selling prices less estimated costs was RMB27,215,000

(2016: RMB32,912,000).

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

17. R—EBRERR2KRE ()

TRIVRA G BRI Z RN H BRI R
Tz MR EE S AR R RLR 77 B9 1 5 B R

g5 -
=2

BRZR S BB & N R R s B

2017
—2—tF
RMB’000
ARBT R

33,568
47,659
39,906

2017
—E—tf
RMB’000
AREF T

22,942
104,212
(2,445)

124,709

35%
43,648

(19,090)

2016
ZE—RF
RMB’000
ARET T

24,353
35,011
65,382

121,133

124,746

R-ZE—+E+=—A=1+—0H ' LHEEEE
BEETK AN FEREEAS AR 27,215,000
TT(ZZ—7R4F : AR¥32,912,0007T) °
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19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables U E 5 FIE
Impairment BE
Notes receivable PR =L TR IE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,

19. BWESKREEFIE

2017 2016

—g—t% e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARMET T

184,853 111,121

- (437)

184,853 110,684

128,361 114,976

313,214 225,660

RHES —MERARES - AREEB R

except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally three months for major
customers. Each customer has a credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to manage credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, net of provisions, is as follows:

Trade receivables FEWWE 5
Outstanding balances with ages:
Within 90 days 90 H A

Between 91 and 180 days 912180H
Between 181 and 270 days 1812270 H
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H
Over one year 1F A E
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BEFREEFRG MEERFEEH—HKE
=R - BuUBEFPHZEEERTE - REEER

HERHREEEUIE  UEEEEEEDD
MEREERR =ATEBESTE RS
HAR R o B LA _E Rl K B AT AN 55 [ B JE U 2
%E%&K§$E§ﬁ~ﬁkﬁﬁ%§%¢

T;zEEwAiIJ E’Jrﬁﬂﬁ?%ﬁ 1

MEERR - BIE S REBEFKAETTHE -

RR AR - N

SHRNEKE 5 RIBER

RO ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREET T
168,676 108,463
13,218 2,125
2,845 96
30 -
84 =
184,853 110,684




Notes to Financial Statements

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:

At beginning of year REFA)

Written off for uncollectible amount AN i AR £ 58
Impairment losses reversed VRN ST (EEE

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired A 80 ER 2 I R (A
Less than three months past due B HA DA A A
Over three months past due EHA (& A A

19.

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

W E Z Kk REHIR (&)

R E SRR R EREES T

2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AREET T
437 437

(218) -

(219) -

- 437

RAW R EH W E ZRIBRE TN

2017 2016
—®—tf —2-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T IN-S ST
168,676 108,463
13,218 2,125
2,959 96
184,853 110,684
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19.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE NOT DERECOGNISED IN
THEIR ENTIRETY

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain notes receivable
accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Notes”) with a
carrying amount of RMB40,535,000 to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks
relating to such Endorsed Notes, and accordingly, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Notes and the
associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the Endorsement,
the Group does not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed
Notes, including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amounts of the trade
payables and other payables settled by the Endorsed Notes during
the year to which the suppliers have recourse were RMB40,281,000
and RMB254,000 as at 31 December 2017, respectively.

132 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SRES8.%5 (1233 ) HRR A 7

).

BWE S K REE ()

R 360 HA % 3 8 0R (B B B W R OR T B K & BN
BRABRLNZEEFPERM -

BB I BB (B A FE UK IR T L % 2 B AR R [E]
EFRFEECENBIEP AR - EXNNAE
B AEBEZRR/BARZSEBRIELR
ERE AREEEXYELREANET M
BERERDER AT 28R o AEE W&
% B RERRT FF A A 0  SR A S B A
¥ ©

REFRILBRZUBEE

R-Z—t&H&+=—B=+—8  RPENRTT
BMAEBEES THEARK40,535,0007T
ZEWEEBE(ESER] THETHER
IRERZEHERZEGESR(EE] -
EERE A5EEE FNREBERKER
ERREREEEERZENRR Bt A
SEFERRASEZR 2BERERAEREMNE
BEMEZR - 5E%R  AEEWERBEM
FRESER 2 EERN  BEHE - EiEsl
ERBEZRTFEMEME=F - FR - BB
EEERIMZHEEREEREZENESK
REMEMZER T —tF+=-A=+—H
ZBERMEES B A A R 40,281,000 7T A A
R# 254,000 7T °



Notes to Financial Statements

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21.

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments LB

Deposits and other receivables & ® [ B th fE WK IE
Wealth management products BT M

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, at market value LETRERE - EmmE

The above equity investments at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were
classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

20. TANH - BRERHMEWRIE

21.

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥ETT
11,970 7,760
12,005 3,198
449,000 210,000
472,975 220,958

BEERABMRILERE - LAEHRERE
Z A EE BT B SRR KO SR WO JE YRR
7 e

ZRBHRURNAEIRZBRERE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
8,743 7,794

R_E—+tFR=—FT—ARF+_A=+—8"
LR ERE DB RIUZ S R/ E MG IR
& EVIRTERE AL B IS E RB BB
AR EHIEREIRIERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2 —+44 133



Notes to Financial Statements

B RE AR EE

31 December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=—F=+—H

22. CASH AND BANK 20, BERBTRER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT
Cash and cash in banks RNE NIRITTER 138,045 129,407
Short-term deposits v EEE 473,032 533,889
611,077 663,296
Term deposit with maturity over three months £ B #2838 = A &Y & BifE 7% (150,330) =
Cash and cash equivalents WERBEEEY 460,747 663,296

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and bank balances and short-
term deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB539,051,000 (2016: RMB503,633,000) in Mainland China. The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks (including the pledged bank deposits and term
deposit with maturity over three months) earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash

equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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R-ZE—+t&E+_-_A=1+—H ANEERHEH
REEREABARERNE ¢ RIRT1TATEE H
FREE A KRB 539,051,000 T (=T — /N4 ¢
AR HE503,633,0007T) °c ARBEWTAIHHE N
WA MBS - SR - AR IR BK RESNE B
ERRAEE SEEMGEEEER  AEEE
B BT HEITINE XS RITHEARE LR
REMEE o

ROTER(BREERRTERLIBAES
=18 A & BF ) B SR BRUE B3 E s A0 A
KERE - EHEHESBARRAF-—BE=@EA
& REREEHRRSFLME - WAERE
5GBS BT SR A R ERERA B - RITAEBRE T
NIFRETRIER - FEREFMRTH - B
EMREFBEVNEREERLEQAE -



23.

24.

Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 23.
An aging analysis of the trade payables and notes payable as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:
Outstanding balances with ages: IRBE A E) Y i K A4 EE
Within 90 days 90HK
Between 91 and 180 days 91%180H
Between 181 and 270 days 181 & 270 H
Between 271 and 360 days 271 %2360 H
Over one year — P
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade and notes
payables approximate to their fair values. The aggregate carrying
amount of the trade payables settled by the Endorsed Notes during
the year to which the suppliers have recourse was RMB40,281,000
as at 31 December 2017 (note 19).
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24.
Advances from customers TEU AR X
Accruals TEiIRE M
Taxes other than corporate income tax Br{bZEFTS RSN L IR
Payable for purchases of machinery and RS MAETFIEEM BN K

construction of buildings
Other payables H AT

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
settlement term of six months. The carrying amounts of the other
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. The
aggregate carrying amount of the other payables settled by the
Endorsed Notes during the year to which the suppliers have recourse
was RMB254,000 as at 31 December 2017 (note 19).

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

BNEZ K RERE

RS MR ENE S RENREFRRER D
o

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
102,872 33,765
39,485 53,238
155 228

138 3

754 704
143,404 87,938

FET B S RIB T Fl B Rk — M IiE N+ B RER
B  BENESRBERBEZREERER
RERE BREEERIN2HEFFER
BZENEIRZBERER-_Z—+tF+=
B=+—RAAAR 40,281,000 7T (HiFE 19)

Hitt BRI R RFAREN

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
14,760 6,929
83,280 41,542
27,396 14,966
4,475 6,472
31,086 28,195
160,997 98,104

HAb AR A B R FEHREREER -
Hih AR RERERAZREEEE AR AR
Lo BBEERRINHERBERECZE
thENRZAEAER - —+tF+=A
=+—HAARK 254,000 7T (H7£19) °
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B RE AR EE

31 December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=—F=+—H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 25. iTERITER
2016
ZE—RF
Effective interest
rate (%) Maturity Original Equivalent
B BEFZE (%) FIEAR JR¥& HEER
HK$’'000 RMB’000
BT IT ARBT T
Current 45 Hy

Bank loan — secured 2 IR ITE R HIBOR*+1.50% 2017 120@ 108
Bank loan — secured Eﬁﬁmﬁﬁgﬁ HIBOR*+1.75% 2017 10,000© 8,996
10,120 9,104
2017 2016
—B—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETTT

Analysed into: o=

Bank loans repayable: RITERAERA

Within one year or on demand DR —FHIRFE K - 9,104

*

Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate

(@) The bank loan was secured by the mortgage of the Group’s leasehold
land and building in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB31,815,000 at 31 December 2016 (note 13).

(b)  The bank loan was secured by the corporate guarantees of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of
approximately RMB918,341,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB724,397,000), of which bank facilities of HK$22,000,000 (as at
31 December 2016: HK$40,000,000) were secured by corporate
guarantees of the Company.

136 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SRES&UZS (1233 ) HRR A 7

. EBIRITRZERE

@ ZERTEFHALEER=-Z—X<F+=A
=+—HFEREELNARS1,8150007TH)
EAME i REFEMER (FIFE13) ©

b  EHERITEREAAFEAFER o

i t¢+—ﬂ:+fa'$$§mﬁﬁ
EERFENH AR 918,341,000 7T (R =
F+_A=+—8: AEMm4w7mmw'
H A 22,000,000 c(R=ZE—R"F+=A
=+—H : B%40,000,0007T) SRITIEEREE
AR R BIVER RIHELR ©



26.

27.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 1 January

Released to the statement of profit or loss

At 31 December

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

At 1 January 2016

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2017

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB37,416,000 (2016: RMB46,066,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits for which no
deferred tax assets have been recognised, as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
uncertain that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

26. BATFRERR

2017 2016
—E—t5 —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
n—HA—H 2,248 2,683
FFABER (370) (435)
R+=-—A=+—H 1,878 2,248
27. IRIEFIIE
FRNELERBEERBBEZEBNT -
EEBIEEE
Accrued  Government
expenses grants Provisions Total
BREA BRER e @
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL AREFTT
R-Z—7~E—A—H 3919 205 5,007 9,131
ﬁmmﬁéﬁﬁimﬁz
BRI (HEE10)
(1,085) (37) (1,280) (2,402)
RZE—"E+-A=+—H
k=E—+F—HF—H 2,834 168 3,727 6,729
FARGABRRNRZ
EERE (FFE10)
(865) 27) (1,149) 2,041)
R-_Z—+tF+-A=1+—H 1,969 141 2,578 4,688
AEBRPEAEHSHEBEREARE
37,416,000t — T — X F: A R &

46,066,000 7T ) -
EI| HA B 7R 2 8 R A e A
EFIBEE M AER -

B M A AR SR SRR RK -
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities durin
are as follows (Cont’d):

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At 1 January 2016
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year (note 10)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year (note 10)

At 31 December 2017

27. IEFERIA (FF)

g the year FRRELEHEEERBEZZFHNT (B)

ELERERE

RMB’000
ARETIT
R-ZE—NEFE—H—H 42,752
FAREGREBERIBRZ
FIERIE (FIFE10) 3,952
R-EBE—XRF+-_A=+—"H8BxK
—T—+F—H—H 46,704
FARGEERRNRZ
EFERIE (FI5E10) 6,422
R-_ZBE—+F+-_HA=+—H 53,126
2 B R 9 AR

The deferred tax liability of the Group is the withholding tax provided AEERECHREAEATBENEES

for the undistributed retained profits of the Mainland China entities.
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding

BRENNEMHEE - REPBEERASHE - R
BIRPERNSZ SN IR E (R RSN IR E & B IR A X

tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the B BR10% WM EBUWEINR - ZAEBE =

foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The NF-—RA—BRER  WERAR-ZZZLF+A
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings =+—HENER - WPBAREEINGIREE T
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be /HEIEEER IR R - AIPERARIE A TR
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the c AEBMERRERS% - At BEZTZENF

jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the appl
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding

icable rate *H*Elt' RNEBEAFRAEF B RER AN EA
taxes on RIFTEERNAERN M IR B ETHRWENHAE
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland %o

China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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28.

SHARE CAPITAL

SHARES

Authorised:
10,000,000,000 (2016: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully paid:
793,191,000 (2016: 801,852,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Equivalent to RMB’000

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

28. JRA
B 5
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T
JERE ¢
FREEBE0.1 T T @A
10,000,000,000 ft (=& — /< 4F
10,000,000,000 %) 1,000,000 1,000,000
BT RER
FREES0.1 T E R
793,191,000 % (= Z — /" F -
801,852,000 f%) 79,319 80,185
ZHARET T 84,197 84,952
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 28. MRAS(#8)
SHARES (Cont’d) B3 (&)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as AARRADEB ST ¢
follows:
Number of Share
shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
ERTRE
2B ERITRAE R 13588 e
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE AT AT T AT T
At 1 January 2016 R=—E—R"F—HA—H 804,848,000 80,485 75,224 155,709
Shares repurchased [SEAEE R (3,536,000 (354) (21,756) (22,110
Share options exercised BT R R E 540,000 54 2,460 2,514
At 31 December 2016 NZZT—XRF
and 1 January 2017 +-A=+—HBR
—T—+F—H—H 801,852,000 80,185 55,928 136,113
Shares repurchased in RZE—REEEE
2016 and cancelled B fn R rEdH 29 (820,000 (82) - (82)
Shares repurchased ERELmARG O (9,111,000) 911) (44,359) (45,270)
Share options exercised @ BT R ER 1,270,000 127 5,088 5,215
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-—A=+—H 793,191,000 79,319 16,657 95,976

During the year, the Company repurchased 9,111,000 of its ordinary
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for a total consideration of
HK$45,072,000 before expenses. The repurchased shares were
cancelled during the year. The nominal value of the cancelled shares of
HK$911,100 was transferred to the capital redemption reserve and the
premium on repurchase, and the related costs incurred for share
repurchase, HK$44,359,000 in total, were charged against the share
premium account of the Company.

During the year of 2017, 1,270,000 share options under the
Company’s share option scheme were exercised. Accordingly,
1,270,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued as a result of
the exercise of share options.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in note

30 to the financial statements.
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BRAL MRS B2 HEND -

FR - ANRAER R AT 9,111,000 A A
RIEERG TSEBRA2AREABE
45,072,0007T * fEE AR DN EFE NFESHE o BiaE
SHIRO EMEARF 2 S A% 911,100 T E#E
BB EGEE - MR R AT 2@ E R i8R
2 L% 44,359,000 T E ;2 AR R 7] Z IR
1R ER

2017 A+ 1,270,000 BEAR & AN A 7] B8 X A A
B AR EITE - Et - 1,270,000 8 F
REESBEN T2 L ERE RZSHRER
T{EM BT -

el

SRR MIFES0 ©



29.

30.

TREASURY SHARES

The Company repurchased 820,000 of its ordinary shares on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange for a total consideration of
HK$3,801,000 before expenses in December 2016. The nominal
value of those shares of HK$82,000 was transferred to the capital
redemption reserve and the premium on repurchase, and the related
costs incurred for share repurchase, HK$3,734,000 in total, were
charged against the share premium account of the Company as at
31 December 2016. The repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled on 26 January 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2003 (the “2003
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons (including the Company’s directors,
independent non-executive directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants as defined under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The 2003 Share Option Scheme became effective on 21 June 2003
and remained in force for 10 years from that date until 20 June 2013.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible person in the 2003 Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

A new share option scheme, which was approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting on 24 May 2013,
became effective on 21 June 20183 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”, together with the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
“Scheme”) and will remain in force for 10 years until 20 June 2023.
The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are similar to
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Notes to Financial Statements

29.

30.

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

ERER gy

—E—RNFE+ A ARAREEZFTER
820,000 RN AR EBIRMD - TEERB 2 BK

8 /783,801,000 T ° BT HR D EEMRSE
ZEEEARE 82,000 LB BEEABEIHE -
BOBRANZEEREAEREER
3,734,000 LERRARRBR =T —A~F+=
A=+—B2zZRH&ER -BERHEER
201761 A 26 ALY o

BT E

RARNZEZE=FRMAVBEREFE([=F
TERERTE - EEABAREEEBKR
EHERMNEERAL(BEARAES B
VIEHITES ASEEIRN-TT=ER
REFTEIRERNHME AR EE) RSB R
HE o —ET=RREFEN =TT =FA
T —BERERZ AR TFRAREERE
—E—=FHAZtH-

EEM12EABMEAR T T T =B ET3
MELUAERZEENBRENT TEITRS
BDEE - UARBREMEEHN D BETRN
1% B3R o FLEE— DR Rt R A
AERRAE EEBRIE -

FEREGTES (R —=FRAZTMHAR
REFAE LERFRIE) R —=FA
—tHRER(ZZ=—=BEKEstgl =
ZET - ERES SIS [ZEt B D WIS AT
FERE_ZE_=FA=t+H - —ZT—=H
IR El 2 E 2 ERE - T = BT S48
Lo

BFARAIES - BN EERRHEEEMA
BAE S R AR LM B IERITESIE
o bSO anAME 1218 B ERE T AR R E
TR IR o 9B N FE AT R Bl A S (AT A B 7T
1] B AR R 8 A8 2 B M AT R ) B 351 T AR
MH01% - B B RENRE (REARQF
RRAD A BB IR R T B AR B 5T &) Ba B 1
5,000,0007c * BIZES= R ERRAE® ERER
B o
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 30. BRAESTEI (&)
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days 2 TR AR R iR PR R s B HAARET 21 B AR
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of BEA - TRCES A B 4 B R R R 4 A (AR
HK$10 by each grantge with no other clzonsifjeration being péyable B AL EE10THSEERE HES
by the grantee. An option may be eerrC|sed in gccordance W.Ith the 7T R AE > B oA B e ) B AR T
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on e o e .
such date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the EFRERHBEARETORAOEREH
Board may determine in granting the option and expiring at the close R AE » AT B B (ff i An fe] 11588 18 £ 11
of business on such date as the Board may determine in granting B AT 4R ) AR SRk AT B O IRSRA T EE B AL o
the option but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant.
The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors, BRENTEEBHESET ETSERUT
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing BEENRSE  ((ARTBRORBLERES
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share B 7EB 32 BT BT SR B I T 1 ¢ % () AR A BT BR A
options; e}nd (i) the averagfe Stook. Exchange C|OSIIﬂg price of 'Fhe Sz iE i B A AR 5 B 7R A B SR
Company’s shares fori the five trading da.ys |mmed|ately preceding SR - 1S TR B A B AR
the date of offer, provided that the exercise price shall not be less
than the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company. HiE
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to BARETEE THE AT ZAREHIRKEERA
vote at shareholders’ meetings. g LIREMRER o
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme VAR e st SIS AR T RO BB ARLAE -
during the year:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
InEEFH N5
THE BREHE 1THEE fERR SR
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
per share per share
=1 ik
At 1 January W—HA—H 5.911 21,324 5.826 19,164
Granted during the year FRDHFEH 4.250 6,000 6.068 3,000
Exercised during the year R E 1T 3.130 (1,270) 3.504 (540)
Lapsed during the year FRBERM 3.130 (54) 6.340 (300)
At 31 December W+—A=+—8H 5.670 26,000 5.911 21,324

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$4.5292 (2016:
HK$5.6133).
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ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 30. BRAESTEI (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RSB RS « SR 7T{E Hy BE AR R T A (B R T i 1
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BT :
2017
—®-tF
Number of options Exercise price’ Exercise period
BREHE THRE" THRERME
’000 HK$
ke
per share
B
1,000 6.440 17-09-2015 to = 16-09-2020
5,900 5.150 08-01-2016 to £ 07-01-2021
3,000 5.270 18-03-2016 to £ 17-03-2021
6,000 7.340 16-04-2016 to £ 15-04-2021
1,400 6.380 23-11-2016 to £ 22-11-2021
1,500 6.340 11-05-2017 to £ 10-05-2022
1,200 5.660 08-09-2017 to £ 07-09-2022
6,000 4.250 29-11-2018 to # 28-11-2023
26,000
2016
—E—RF
Number of options Exercise price’ Exercise period
BlREHE 1THEE" 771 BRfA
’000 HK$
B
per share
B
1,324 3.130 25-03-2012 to & 24-03-2017
1,000 6.440 17-09-2015 to & 16-09-2020
5,900 5.150 08-01-2016 to £ 07-01-2021
3,000 5.270 18-03-2016 to & 17-03-2021
6,000 7.340 16-04-2016 to 2 15-04-2021
1,400 6.380 23-11-2016 to & 22-11-2021
1,500 6.340 11-05-2017 to & 10-05-2022
1,200 5.660 08-09-2017 to & 07-09-2022
21,324
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case * 1T BERR S B AT AL AR SR AR A BIRR AN 3R
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s HEa &) - AIBERENITEEATU
share capital. R o
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. This value is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitation of the
valuation model used. The following table lists the inputs to the
model:

25/3/  17/9/ 8/1/
Date of grant REHH 2011 2014 2015
Dividend yield (%) AR B2 (%) 197 097  1.21
Expected volatility (%) TEER )R 18 (%) 40 42 43
Historical volatility (%) B E (%) 40 42 43
Risk-free interest rate (%) £ EFRITIR X (%) 1970 1.584 1.365
Expected life of option (year) BEARHETESHEEHA (4F) 6 6 6
Fair value at the date of RELBBNRAE
grant(HK$) (&%) 098 245 192

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over
the past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the

measurement of fair value.

The 1,270,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 1,270,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new
share capital of HK$127,000 and share premium of HK$3,848,100
as further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 26,000,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 3.28% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 26,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company,
additional share capital of HK$2,600,000 and share premium of
HK$144,809,000 (before share issue expenses).
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30. FEMAERTE (&)
BTABRASENBEENAAENIRETE
BEE RN — SFRAEEREN G
W EEEERT BRI GRR R GN - ENAR
R RPAEAMEEEXFERS - BREEE
AEZEERD R TEERSE - TRIIHZIE
A ARE

18/3/  16/4/ 23/11/ 11/5/  8/9/ 29/11/
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017
118 085 104 106 130 270
43 43 43 43 43 41
43 43 43 43 43 41
1200 1065 1.183 0969 0694 1.586
6 6 6 6 6 6
197 282 242 234 203 127

BB FHIREAEAFNELENE

[ B 38 1R 0 F] BN AR SR B 5

YR - fERK

WEEME T BERENARIIARAENTE

Hep o

F A - 17 /Y 1,270,000 17 8 B2 #E 5| BUA A &)
171,270,000 i L @A) - 3G HNFT AR AN B
127,000 7T J i& 1 5 (B 7 1 3,848,100 7T * # 15
B TR R TE 28 ©

T—+F+ZA=1+—8 AREIREZ
Z# A 26,000,000 17 i AR 7 ) AR ESTHE - 4
NEBARRFE BTN A 3.28% © IRIBEA
RIR A S AR - BBITEAR T HEARE
3|84 A &) %17 26,000,000 AR FE SN L i@ A% - 12
N7 #5 2,600,000 7T B) A% 2N LA 2 AR 1) V55 12 75 B
144,809,000 7T (T &R M TR °

1,

/
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31.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for

the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 61 to 62 of the financial

statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as set out in
note 1, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued

in exchange therefor.

STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE (THE “SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China Subsidiaries, each
of the Mainland China Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the
PRC generally accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until
this reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital. Part of the
SSR may be converted to increase the paid-up capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION RESERVE
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Notes to Financial Statements
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&

REERERAFERBEFENSE R ES
EEHRPERERFIEE2HMGA RS
FRA -

(i

(i)

BARER
AEBRBARBIBRBENME1AED
SEESAMEBHBARERNERSE
EFEEARRABMEBEEMHET
AR BRI E{ENZHE

EEERBRAEE
REPEDBDERPEMB QBN A A
B2 FEMBARSBARTERR
AR BERREMI10% D EE
EEBBAES  BREAEHRLES
R H M E AR 50% o B0 AE AR
RIEE A8 A BUR AR IS AL AS - HE
BAREMBB A EREMERD
25% °

BE 5K B
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. BERESzEemMIE
Financial assets 2017 2016
BBEE “E-tF B RE
Equity Equity
investments investments
at fair value at fair value
through  Loans and through Loans and
profit or loss  receivables Total  profitorloss  receivables Total
BRBEN BRBEN
DESIR LEV RAEGR Bk
BERE FEWRE BE  RERE felsE EEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR%TT ARETR ARETE
Trade and notes receivables BYEHREETE - 313,214 313,214 - 225,660 225,660
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AT 3% - & R A
deposits and other receivables RUH 2 HEEE - 461,005 461,005 - 213,198 213,198
Equity investments at fair value through ~ EBBRUAL BB 2
profit or loss KR e 8,743 - 8,743 7,794 - 7,79
Cash and bank Re RBTEH - 611,077 611,077 - 663,296 663,296
8,743 1,385,296 1,394,039 7,79 1,102,154 1,109,948
Financial liabilities 2017 2016
MKEE —E2—tF —E—REF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

FEfTE 5 R EB IR

FEAEMEN R L IBIRE B
ZEBaE

FHERITER

Trade and notes payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans

146 bAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SRES81%5 (1253 ) HRR A 7

amortised cost

amortised cost

RBERATE  REERAE
ZHMBEE ZHBARE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETT
143,404 87,938

62,957 49,633

- 9,104

206,361 146,675
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33. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2017:

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

33. ERTAEZAARERER

TRIBAEESMTIANARNETNEER

R=E— 4+ A=+—BEAREHER
B

Fair value measurement using

ERUTRBETAAENE

Quoted prices
in active
markets

RIEBMIEN
HE

(Level 1)
F—&
RMB’000
ARETR

Equity investments at BREBRUARE
fair value through HIRR 2 IRFERE
profit or loss 8,743

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
EAXAHEE BARARA
L PN BRE@AE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
gt B=R &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBT

- - 8,743

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank, trade and notes receivables,
trade and notes payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank loans approximate
to their fair values.

BE-F—tE+-AS+—AILER  $—
BEE-GHLEAAEHEEE - HEHA
HBHE= -

Ra RIRTER - BERF R ERERE - B
BRARENRE  FEARMNK  REREMLE
Wik B EE  sEAEMENREERER
ZHBEE  ARGRRITERNREERE
NRERE -
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34.

148 bAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED SRES&.%5 (1233 ) HRR A 7

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating
activities (when revenue or expenses are denominated in a different
currency from the Group’s functional currency) and the Group’s net
investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign
currencies. RMB, the official currency in the PRC, is not freely
convertible. Enterprises operating in Mainland China can enter into
exchange transactions through the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions. Payments for imported materials or
services and remittance of earnings outside of Mainland China are
subject to the availability of foreign currencies which depends on the
foreign currency denominated earnings of the enterprises, or must
be arranged through the People’s Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions. Approval for exchanges at the People’s Bank of
China or other authorised financial institutions is granted to
enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as purchases of
imported materials and remittance of earnings. While conversion of
RMB to the Hong Kong dollar or other foreign currencies can
generally be effected at the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions, there is no guarantee that it can be
effected at all times.

34. TRIEMREERERER

AEBBEERKEZRARENE SHHIALTH
MEBPBEEREE WIHRAEKEERE
& o

ﬁiﬁlé\ﬁﬂlﬂﬁﬁﬁ&m}%ﬂ R S FINE &
|§»"R m,\ //ILEUﬁ%J—L R ° L/(T?%i%@
R RIAEIREN AEEL LB R BER 2 E -

SN R B
SMNERBREI SR TAN AR EHIRRRERE
R EEXSHELRBNRER - REBAED

BEE =< 5 B J i F 22 LR R B S (i W s 3
XATARAEEDEEENERFE) A
SERINEMBARIHFREFH

B PEBFDERIMNEES - PERESE
BARBTAEMmILE RPRAELE 25
EAEBTEARRITREMBI S BBBEL
FHNER S o XFHERRH KRG <GB R
BN P B R FE SR MR 19 S SN (e 8RR
PRI - WAKREDEASNESHEZ BN A
BRTPEAARRITAEMRBA S REEFELL
B RPBEEZCEEAROEET - F
BAEDRMRELBF - AR AR T
ARBITHEAMR A RMEETT L] - R
ARBEHIBEREMINE—RATEFEAR
RITAEMBA S REEET  BEEERIFR
LR REHETT ©



34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Cont’d)

The Group does not have any significant investment outside of
Mainland China. However, the Group has transactional currency
exposures. These exposures arise from sales of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. Approximately 13.98% of the Group’s sales for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 12.18%) were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
subsidiaries. Upon receipt of currencies other than the functional

currency, the subsidiaries sell them to the banks at suitable time.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2017 —E—tF

If RMB strengthens against the United WARBHETAHE
States dollar

If RMB weakens against the United fit N R 3T (E
States dollar

2016 —E—REF

If RMB strengthens against the United MARBHETAE
States dollar

If RMB weakens against the United fis N R N 2T (B

States dollar

Notes to Financial Statements
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34. TRIEMEEASRHER(E)

SMEE B B (48)

REBEBRFBAREEAINEEEMERKRE - A
i AEEDEHERSEERRE - BRERBR KR
EWKE@E@EPtﬁ*Mﬁ%“ﬂtAﬁma‘ﬁ%
ANz EMHETZHE - BEZT—tF1+=
B=+—RHLEFE " zﬁ%@%@m.%%ziﬁ%
(ZZ—7"F 1 12.18%) TIAAREE A F B K
BERB A RIMIINEEE B LASN 2 E¥EGHE - UK
F e BB AN BEH 1% - AREEE) B ARE
MBARSEREZEEEEFRITULRA

EERH -

TRITERA R REE R TE 2 BR
T AREOBBASTHEER HRAR
THEDHEE (MAREEERAENA

R ERH) -

Increase/

Change in (decrease)
foreign in profit
currency rate before tax
HBRBE AR F

SNEEREE 2% (GRS

RMB’000

ARET R
+5% (5,954)

-5% 5,954

+5% (5,289)

-5% 5,289
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

34.

TREREEBERHEE)

CREDIT RISK FERE

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third AEBEEZEEEAENE-EETRS o
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade ERASENBEE  FIEREEERETRS
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In WEF WEAKBEEZERER®E FAE

addition, receivables and balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of
the Group, which comprise cash and short-term deposits, other
receivables and equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no

'S AEEEHESRBUGRARER
MIER  MAKRENERRARILTEX -

REBARBEEMPEBEENEERR - £+
BREASREHRER  RMEBRFAERERR
/‘_’\LA’A/’NEEIJEEZ%%&E C AEERSTE
HWFEENEERR - ERBFNZETAN
FREME °

AR AREEEZEZTERAREEAENS
=EETRS  WIAFREMMER - EHEE
ﬁEEE}E/X%ﬂ%ﬁEE C E AR E AR

significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. BEMEAEHEES ®
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit BEASEAEKRE ZEFMEEEERBRD
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the E—FTEEENTIREBERI B RKRNMT9 -

financial statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring

REE SR
AEBZEERARTFUERDESHETA &

liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its REECRRMNER HTASZEESHT
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and AN EE(NEWKE SR WEIER AR

projected cash flows from operations.

)ERRA]

KAREXBNRPRERE



34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR L

31 December 2017 R=Z—+&F+=A=+—H

34. TRIEMEEASRHER(E)

RBESRR (&)

IR B SE B RR A R BT 30

CR:)

MBAEBMAMAMT

2017
o
3 toless
On Less than than 1to5 Over
demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=ED
RER PR=@ER RKR+={EA —ZERF HEMLE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TR AR®BTR AR¥TR
Trade and notes BB SR
payables EBRIR 12,698 93,113 37,593 - - 143,404
Other payables Hith BT 62,957 - - - - 62,957
75,655 93,113 37,593 - - 206,361
2016
—E—RF
3 1o less
Less than than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=F)
RERk LPR=EA R+=fEA —ERF RERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTRT AREBTT AR®TT ARETT ARETT
Interest-bearing sHRSRITE R
bank loans - 9,104 - - - 9,104
Trade and notes ERES R
payables T RIR 9,631 66,939 11,368 - - 87,938
Other payables H AR 49,633 - - - - 49,633
59,264 76,043 11,368 - - 146,675
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

34. TRIEMEEASRHER(E)

EXEE
AEEEREANEE B RRREAEENR
BEERENRAEFBROBEALER  UXEE
EBERREFBRRER -

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to

it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No

changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for

managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31

December 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt

divided by the total capital plus net debt. The net debt includes trade

and notes payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing

bank loans, less cash and bank. Capital represents equity

attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the

end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Less: Cash and bank

Net debt

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

N E S RFEERIA
Hits N R R IEIRE
FPEERITENR

B R e RETER

NAEEA ANE(H RS

BARFEE

BEARBELR
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AEEHEREQERBEZCEELEANRBL
HEMEHHE- ﬁﬁhiﬂﬁ§$ A - K&

Eo g AN TREAR, REEAR
T AR R Sk B ATEAR (D Fﬁi_q —tF+=
A=+—BERZE-—R"E+-A=+—HIHF
BN BEEEREENBE - BXRBELE
{E {28 o
AEBHAERNEBLERERAEREBR -
ERBEHENFABERUIBERANFREEZ
BNFE - FAEBEENE S REERNIE

Hofth A5 3R
BRIRE M IR1TFA

CTRIREM  FERIRTE
c BRBRBAREAAE

K A

iR - RRERRZEABBLEMT

2017 2016
—B—tF —ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
143,404 87,938
160,997 98,104

- 9,104

(611,077) (663,296)
(306,676) (468,150)
1,806,158 1,636,756
1,499,482 1,168,606
(20)% (40)%



35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

36.

Notes to Financial Statements
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35. IREREMERME

CASH FLOWS
CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING HRETBELENEEES
ACTIVITIES
Bank and
other loans
RITREME K
RMB’000
AREETIT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+tF—H—H 9,104
Changes from financing cash flows BERSRHEE (8,437)
Foreign exchange movement ERE (667)
COMMITMENTS 36. Aiff
(a) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (@) REEHEEFRE

(b)

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

AEERBEEHERHFAEE TR
M- WEEENEEHARNT -0
F 2 e

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 K&E
RIF AT RS L M B 18 R R R
RIERERBETENOT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETIT
Within one year —&FR 436 624
After one year but within five years —FRENLZRAF 143 335
579 959

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (b) EAREE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT

Contracted, but not provided for: BET4) - [BRVERME

Plant and machinery M N 2% 4,500 3,060
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EYRA
Employee share option benefits 8 TRERERT
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIHR

Total compensation paid to key management FEEIE A B4 1858
personnel

Further details of the directors’ and the chief executive officer’s

emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements.
38. OTHER MAJOR EVENTS

On 20 December 2017, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Relocation Compensation Agreement with the Chengnan Street
Office (which is under the People’s Government of Wuzhong
Economic Development District of Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC), where Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical will receive an
aggregate of approximately RMB351.2 million as Relocation
Compensation for surrender of the land. The terms of the Relocation
Compensation Agreement were arrived after arms’ length negotiation
between Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical and the Chengnan
Street Office, with reference to the valuation of the land by an
independent qualified PRC property valuer.

As at 31 January 2018, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical received
the first 20% of the Relocation Compensation (RMB70.2 million).
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37.

~

38.

BB AR5
AEEXTZEEEAEMHE :
2017 2016
—2—+tF —ZE—N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
9,711 8,237
2,705 4,198
106 65
12,5622 12,500

EERBEMEFEHNTEREAMET -

HEKREH

RZE—+E+-A=-+H XAFRER2E
BB A Rl AR N BRI R SR B R AT B M B R (R
FEI#HEHNMTRPECERERARBNE
BB AERZ - B BN ER K
BAENAREIS12BETIEARH LA
FEME - FEHERZENERN2ZEBLE
B A& B AR T A E - A &R
RIn RN mAENEREATERNRER

R-T—NE—A=+—8  #HFINRIHR B
FE20% FrEME(ARET702HET) °
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. ARD BB RIT
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company R EBARARRNTHFARARERAT :

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
-+t —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGOk 271,399 327,701
Total non-current assets ERBEELRT 271,399 327,701
CURRENT ASSETS nEBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FB{T3X - &4 & H ith fE 28 196 237
Equity investments at fair value through BRBHARALBEIRZBERE
profit or loss 8,743 7,794
Cash and bank e RIBITER 8,302 5,083
Total current assets MB)EERRE 17,241 13,114
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables and accruals HitnfE R R BIRE A 462 2,310
Total current liabilities REAEERE 462 2,310
NET CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 16,779 10,804
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 288,178 338,505
Net assets FEE 288,178 338,505
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 F#EH A EGER
Issued capital BT 84,197 84,952
Treasury shares EF&H5 - (74)
Reserves s 203,981 253,627
Total equity A 288,178 338,505
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. AT AR ()
COMPANY (Cont’d)
Note: M5k
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAT 2 RERENT -
Share Share Capital Exchange Proposed
premium  Contributed option  redemption fluctuation Retained final
account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total
-0 E B
RBEE BARH  BRERG BEfE RERE REER AERE ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETn ARETR  ARETRr  ARETR
At1 January 2016 RZF-~E—A-H 76,861 100,175 13,334 3,025 (70.981) 110,863 - 283217
Profit for the year TEERT = = - - - 111,592 - 111,592
Qther comprehensive income for the year: ~ REEEMZENE :

Exchange differences B EE - - - - 15,840 - - 15,840
Total comprehensive income MEERENGER

for the year - - - - 15,840 111,592 - 121,432
Exercise of share options et 2122 - (637) - - - - 1,585
Final 2015 dividend declared ER-E-RERERE - - - - - (80,648) - (80,648)
Divicend on shares issued for employee ~ —F-FE+-F=1—R

share options exercised after BITENERBRER

31 December 2015 EARRHRE - - - = = 5) - (9]
Share repurchased and cancelled EEORRD RiT# (15,349 - - 301 - (301) - (15,349)
Share repurchased subsequently cancelled 2B EIR(A R a4 T 5 (3,359) - - 74 - (74) - (3,359)
Equity-settled share option arangements b fRiEs: e ARERH - - 11,423 - - - - 11,423
Interim 2016 dividend ZE-NEPERE = = = = = (20,73) - (20,735)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=F—xE+=A=1—H

k=%-t£-A-H 60,261 100,175 24,220 3,400 (55,141) 120,692 - 253,621
Proft for the year REEEA - - - - - 87,815 - 87,815
Other comprehensive loss for the year: MEEEMZEES -

Exchange differences EREE - - - - (19,360) - - (19,360)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ2AMGSEE - - - - (19,360) 87,815 - 68,455
Exercise of share options TiBsEmRE 4,499 - (1,100) - - - - 3,399
Final 2016 dividend declared BR-E-NERBKE - - - - - (11,082) - (71,082)
Dividend on shares issued for employee “EE+ZA=1-H

share options exercised after BITENEEERER

81 December 2016 FRHHRE - - - - - (1) - (1)
Share repurchased and cancelled EREEARG RS (38,620) - - 793 - (799) - (38,620)
Equity-settled share option arrangements DA R RE R o - - 8,511 - - - - 8,511
Interim 2017 dividend —E-LERfRE - - - - - (20,239) - (20,239)
At 31 December 2017 R=F—t#+-A=1-A 2,160 100,175 31,631 4,193 (74,501) 116,323 - 203,981
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39.

40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation referred to in note 31(i), over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the issued capital account and the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 22 March 2018.

Notes to Financial Statements
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40.
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RRBEBARRF ()

AR BB BRI 5E 31() a3 R B E E AR PT
WHEE AR ERNGS EEFEBRAR R RRR
BRABREMHEITHAR R KO EERNE D

BREFERECRBERRTEBRENAAE
HiE— P EMEN U B RRM 2.4 AR AT RRIE
VEETIRERA - BERBREREITRR - KHRESHE
EEZFTRAREEMOEER - EARBRERH
HAREUHE - EHEREEREE -

BA SRR AL

PEBREENR_ZE—/\EF=ZA_+_HEZEZE
LA MIREET
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLHEE

ATAAEERNBERBVRFECEE BEER
BEME - IREEC AMKSERMBERE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+F —T—RF —T—HF —T-NF —T—=F
RESULTS E45 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETRT AR®TT AREFTT ARETT
Revenue 1N 882,483 824,351 985,000 783,803 914,973
Cost of sales FHE A (320,934) (312,872 (415,612) (323,884) (511,725)
Gross profit EF 561,549 511,479 569,388 459,919 403,248
Other income and gains HipUW A KUzt 30,372 24,425 31,481 18,728 17,197
Selling and distribution HERDIHE R
expenses (88,086) (98,895) (94,471) (99,412) (112,749)
Administrative expenses 1THE B (82,491) (64,625) (74,940 (61,009 (61,609
Other expenses HEmEH (48,946) (38,928) (52,745) (56,529) (53,521)
Finance costs B 7% (13) (157) (1,524) (2,804) (3,600)
Share of profits and losses of ~ f&{h —fE < A 5] 2
an associate BF & EtE (6,682) — — - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B 5 AT F) 365,703 333,299 377,189 258,893 188,966
Income tax expense FriS#i (72,725) (67,382) (74,991) (53,748) (35,867)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR IR S 7| 292,978 265,917 302,198 205,145 153,099
Attributable to: LA &AM, -
Owners of the parent S REIHEA A 292,978 265,917 302,198 205,145 153,099
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES X¥ERE®E
TOTAL ASSETS WEE 2,181,211 1,886,364 1,803,736 1,693,400 1,721,148
TOTAL LIABILITIES HmasE (375,053) (249,608) (329,860) (445,120) (629,411)
NET ASSETS BEE 1,806,158 1,636,756 1,473,876 1,248,280 1,091,737
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(i) from Friday, 18 May 2018 to Thursday, 24 May 2018, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the 2018 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate
share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 17 May 2018 with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

(i) from Wednesday, 30 May 2018 to Thursday, 31 May 2018, both
days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares of
the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the
appropriate share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29 May 2018 with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (i) above, no
transfers of shares will be registered.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2018 AGM will be held on Thursday, 24 May 2018. Details of the 2018
AGM are set out in the notice of AGM with constitutes part of the circular
to Shareholders sent together with this annual report.
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Information for Shareholders

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2017 AGM

Announcement of 2017
interim results

Announcement of 2017
annual results

2018 AGM

DIVIDENDS

2017 Interim dividend

Payment date for 2017 interim
dividend

Proposed 2017 final dividend

Ex-dividend date for 2017
final dividend

Book closing dates for 2017
final dividend

Payment date for proposed
2017 final dividend
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25 May 2017
22 August 2017

22 March 2018

24 May 2018

HK$0.03 per share
28 September 2017

HK$0.12 per share

28 May 2018

30 May 2018-31 May 2018

on or about 13 June 2018

B B

T EFRRBFERE
DT FRHEE

2 N\FRRBFRE

R

“ER L FhHRE
—2—tFRHRE
IRAS H AR
EERE_T—+F
REAR R
—E—EFREBE

—F L F AR
BF A

RHER 2 T
RHBR RN B 28

—T—+H#AA-+HH
—E—tFNA=Z+=H

- N\F=ZA=-t+=H

—E-N\FRAE-+IH

FHEE0.03 7T
—E—+t+FNA=+N\H

FREE 0127
—T-NFRA-+NHB
-/ \FHA=1tHZ

RA=+—H

—E2-N\FRAT=R
AR



Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB B EFFEB3385% L iFH 1\30423001-02F

22 Tianling Road, Wuzhong Economic Development District, Suzhou, Jiangsu, PRC.
FEIHA MM RPEERBEREK225

www.dawnrays.com
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